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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I am pleased to announce
the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

OVERVIEW

As mentioned in note 8 and note 17, the revenue and results
of the Group’s entire hotel and entertainment business for the
year ended 31st March, 2014 were presented as discontinued
operations. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
have been restated to re-present the hotel and entertainment

business as discontinued operations.

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 (the “Year”), the Group’s
revenue (continuing and discontinued operations) amounted to
HK$292.2 million, representing a decrease of 46% as compared
with HK$543.6 million in the previous financial year. The
Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$487.4 million (2013: loss of HK$27.6 million), of
which HK$163.6 million was from continuing operations
and HK$323.8 million was from discontinued operations.
The basic earnings per share was HK10.90 cents (2013: loss
per share HKO0.62 cents). The substantial increase in profit
attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to a gain
of HK$539.1 million on disposal of hotel complex and certain
assets (“Assets”) from the discountinued hotel and entertainment
business. Having set apart the revenue of HK$64.4 million
(2013: HK$368.1 million) and loss of HK$41.0 million (2013:
HK$213.2 million) from the discontinued operations, the Group
should have revenue of HK$227.8 million (2013: HK$175.5
million) and profit attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$163.6 million (2013: HK$104.3 million) from its

continuing operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Services Business
Market Review

The global economic outlook remains challenging for investors,
with concerns over the tapering of the US monetary stimulus
program and expectations on weaker growth in China. However,
the Dow Jones Industrial Average Index recorded historic high
during the Year and has helped the market sentiments, with
the average daily turnover soared to HK$61 billion, a climb
of 9% compared with HK$56 billion for the same period last
year and the Hang Seng Index has slightly declined by 1% to
close at 22,151 at 31st March, 2014, compared to that on 31st
March, 2013. IPO fundraising activities in Hong Kong recorded
HK$204 billion for the Year, up by 132%, as compared with the

same period last year.

Business Review
Broking and securities margin financing

For the Year, the Group has recorded satisfactory contributions
from both brokerage and margin financing businesses. Operating
results of broking sector boosted by 626% with increase in
securities trading turnover and underwriting transactions.
Income from margin loan interest also rose with increase in
margin loan portfolio. The broking segment reported 40% rise
in revenue for the Year at HK$60.7 million (2013: HK$43.2
million) compared with last year, of which HK$8.4 million
(2013: HK$7.4 million) was contributed by the Group’s
underwriting and placing business. The broking segment posted
profit of HK$14.8 million (2013: HK$2.0 million) for the Year.
Though broking segment has benefited from higher stock market
turnover, the Group will continue to maintain stringent cost
controls over its operations, with facing increasingly intense price

competition.

Securities margin financing remained a major source of income
for the Group. Total margin interest income grew to HK$133.1
million (2013: HK$114.6 million), up 16% compared to last
year. This business accounted for 58% of the Group’s total
revenue. The Group’s margin loan book at year end stood at
HK$1,762.6 million (2013: HK$1,426.7 million), an increase
of 24% compared to that on 31st March, 2013. The impairment
charge on the margin loan book for the year rose from HK$0.8
million to HK$1.7 million. The Group prudently grew its
margin loan business while maintaining a balance on yield
relative to risk and will continue to maintain a cautious approach

to the credit control of its margin financing business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money lending

The money lending vehicle which engaged in provision of
consumer and mortgage loans. The money lending business
experienced rapid growth during the Year. The aggregated
loan amount surged to HK$620.3 million at the year end from
HK$93.7 million at 31st March, 2013, with the interest income
rose significantly to HK$26.7 million for the Year, representing
an increase of 99% as compared to the same period last year.
During the Year, the Group disclosed two substantial loan
agreements in relation to granting of loan and facility to the
Group’s customers, with loan amount of HK$250 million and
facility limit up to HK$150 million respectively. No significant
impairment charge on the money lending loan book was made
for the Year and the year-end loan portfolio held by the Group
was financed by internal resources. The Group is of the view that
the market demand will continue to grow, as evidenced by the
surging aggregated loan amount of the Group’s money lending
business. The Group will continue to target high net worth

customers with short-term financial needs.

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance division continued to focus on
the provision of financial advisory services to listed issuers. It
completed 4 financial advisory assignments during the Year. This
business reported a segmental loss of HK$238,000 for the Year
(2013: HK$137,000).

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. For the Year, this division reported
a profit of HK$25.0 million (2013: loss of HK$74,000), mainly
attributable to an increase in fair value of financial instruments.
As at 31st March, 2014, the Group held a portfolio of equity
and debt securities and convertible notes with a total fair value
of HK$168.4 million (2013: HK$53.7 million). The Group’s
investment strategy is to identify investments with attractive
returns and/or provide synergies with other business of the

Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A

Hotel and Entertainment Business (The Group’s Discontinued
Operations)

The Group’s hotel and entertainment business at Grand
Waldo complex in Macau is operated through its 65% owned
subsidiaries, Great China Company Limited and Grand Waldo
Entertainment Limited (the “Sellers”). The Group has ceased all
operations and business of the Sellers upon the completion of the
Disposal during the Year. Accordingly, the results of the Group’s
hotel and entertainment business were presented as discontinued
operations. For the Year, the hotel and entertainment business
recorded revenue of HK$64.4 million (2013: HK$368.1 million)
and a loss of HK$41.0 million (2013: HK$213.2 million), with a
gain of HK$539.1 million was generated from disposal of Assets.
Substantial decrease in revenue was mainly due to that business
was run for about three months only for the reporting period.
More details regarding the results of the discontinued operations

are set out in note 17.

Outlook

With challenges ahead, the Group will remain vigilant on
costs, diversify its business and adopt a prudent approach in
its growth strategies. Given the Group has maintained a strong
cash position, it is well-placed to response to any unforeseen
challenges and seize new opportunities as they arise. The
considerable cash inflow generated from Macau disposal of Assets
has substantially expanded the Group’s cash resources, which
enables the Group to offer a wider range of financial services
to cater for the financing needs of customers, and to undertake

investments with good potentials.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$3,729.7 million as at 31st March, 2014 (2013: HK$3,374.5
million), representing an increase of HK$355.2 million, or
11% from that of 31st March, 2013. The increase was mainly
attributed to the profit for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$487.4 million and dividend payments of
HK$134.2 million.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s net current assets as at 31st March, 2014 amounted
to HK$3,325.0 million (2013: HK$1,115.3 million) and the
liquidity of the Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio
(current assets/current liabilities) was 3.9 times (2013: 2.2
times). The Group’s cash on hand amounted to HK$812.4
million as at 31st March, 2014 (2013: HK$213.6 million). As
at 31st March, 2014, the Group had no bank borrowings (2013:
HK$332.5 million). As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had
unutilised banking facilities amounting to HK$765.5 million
(2013: HK$1,532.9 million) which were secured by charges over
clients’ pledged securities, certain Group’s properties as well as

corporate guarantees issued by the Company.

The number of issued shares of the Company was 4,473,476,000
as at 31st March, 2014 and 2013.

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio (total
liabilities over equity attributable to owners of the Company)
was 0.31 time (2013: 0.36 time).

The business activities of the Group are not exposed to material
fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of the transactions
are denominated in HK$ and MOP and US$, which are pegged
to HKS.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the year end.

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had no material capital
commitments (2013: HK$379,000).

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31st March, 2014, investment properties, leasehold land
and building of the Group with a carrying amount of HK$123.6
million (2013: HK$2,523.6 million) were pledged for banking

facilities granted to the Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,

associates or jointly controlled entity completed during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A

Employee Information

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had 68 (2013: 624)
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the Year was HK$14.4 million (2013: HK$14.5
million) for its continuing operations. The Group provides
employee benefits including mandatory provident fund,
discretionary share options and performance bonus to its staff.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a final dividend of HKI1 cent per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK3 cents per share for this
financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 11th September,
2014 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 29th August, 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2014
Annual General Meeting

20th August, 2014 —
21st August, 2014,
both dates inclusive

For entitlement to
final dividend

28th August, 2014 —
29th August, 2014,
both dates inclusive
(Record date being
29th August, 2014)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2014
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on
21st August, 2014, Thursday and/or entitlement to the final
dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on the following dates:

Last date of lodgment of
Events transfer documents

For attendance to 2014
Annual General Meeting

19th August, 2014, Tuesday

For entitlement to
final dividend

: 27th August, 2014, Wednesday
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed shares of the

Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st March 2014, the Company has
applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange, except for a deviation which is summarised below:

Code A.4.1

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company according to the provisions of the Articles of

Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st March 2014, including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support and all

our staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board
GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2014

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

BE -LEIEEEXQARZzLD
i 12

TASAR JE 5 A% 28 T A BT 2 ) 20
Wi L~ R ot A 28 A 7 b R o

EREATA
RMEF A=A =+ H IR
R 25 T L — M B 5 9T I L
1 T 2 2 S B B 2
5 (TSR A D) 2 S5 O <
SRS > M SO 2 — IO 1 R
B -

<F Bl % X A4.1

4 286 7 R CA 41 € > ERATE
HI) BATHEA 48 2 AT 10 > 3 20 4 52 8 g
B o AN T SL E AT E Y & AT R A 4
FEAT W > T ZE AR IR 4 R AR 4k T R A B R O
HRAT B AR 28 R 2 P RO A K b e
1T -

BEREEGZENAIH

T B OB R AR F 2 R A
EEEWE - F—WE ] S H IR
LR AT R (AR A MR A 2
A R A1) o

B

AR IR TR L T KR —
ELLLACI0 525 DL % 2 T 005 B AR
2L -

R G
BEERARAF
T

HIEX

T “F—FENA ZHINH



DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 59, is the chairman of the
Company and founder of the Group. He is responsible for the
formulation of corporate strategy and the future direction of the
Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible for overseeing the credit
operation of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses over 20 years of
experience in the securities and real estate industries in Hong

Kong and Taiwan.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 68, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group, and is
responsible for the overall management of the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 46 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September, 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.

Mr. SHUM Kin Wai, Frankie, aged 68, is the managing
director and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the
formulation of corporate strategy, and for the dealing, settlement
and credit operations of the Group. Mr. Shum has been
responsible for the dealing operations for securities trading in
four local securities firms during different period since 1971. Mr.

Shum has over 41 years of experience in the securities business.

Mr. HUNG Sui Kwan, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
director and CEO of the Company on 28th April 2011 and is
responsible for the overall operation and business development
of the Group. During the years from 2002 to April 2011,
Mr. Hung is the company secretary of the Company and
was responsible for executing capital market and merger and
acquisition activities of the Group. He is also a licensed person
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for regulated activity
“advising on corporate finance”. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 886), issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Hung
holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Hung is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man, chairman of the
Company.

SENIOR MANA

BEE

HTES

SRS A - SOR - A 7 I A 4
CEINE S VLER Y PSS Y ETS
D7 ] - I B B S £ SRS«
AT I R %5 M T R
T A -

ERELE > 680 > AN AR ER > &K
il 5T A S B A SR W S R AR T o Bh R
AEAEEBEREN  JHEERET &
Fl ~ R I B M SE R AR DY N AR AR
B8 o fE—JUL—F LA MA AL Z A
AR R Z MBI BRRAT 2 mRITEAR -

TRERE 685K HEMLHAF AL
e CIRCIE N = S S S
My #AREEEE - FhEA
U AR N T S TR A D A 5 S AT
g M 0 5 o AR o A TR A IR SRS
A7 A DY — AR o

HEMELE 455 R _F ——FWWAH
TP NHEZEAEARANFAZHMATES K
TTERAR R » A FAS T [ 2 Rl g o
RN EFERETAEE X ——F A H
Mo e BARANAZ AFFE BEH
T A SR 1) 2 B A T 35 B 1 WS B o IS Ay
R I SO B A )T T i R AR
W A2 K45 05 B 2 FEREN o 1 B AT A R R 4R
9 P B A BR A | (B 5% - 886) (L %%
A7 B 0 T 7 s Wk 5 22 20 T A B /) E 4l b
) 2B IEATE S o MR FFE FB R
Y N VAR AT /N
MAGErRTEAFEBIFMAggE -
L B e AR R AR ) R U E SR 2 R
T o

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS - continued
Executive Directors — continued

Mr. LUNG Hon Lui, aged 56, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 28th April 2011. He has over 23
years of experience in management and operation of hotel and
gaming industry in Macau. He served as the general manager of
the Grand Waldo Complex since its commencement of business
in 20006, responsible for overseeing the whole operation at Grand
Waldo Complex before its cessation of business in 2013. He is
the Life Fellow Member of both The Institute of Management
Specialists and Professional Business and Technical Management
of United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chun Ning, Wilfred, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 16th May, 2002. He is an
independent non-executive director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was
appointed as independent non-executive director of Seamless
Green China (Holdings) Limited during 2008 to July 2011 and
executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited during 1998
to February 2014, whose shares are listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Liu holds a bachelor degree in economics from the University of

Newcastle-upon-Tyne (UK).

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3rd October 2005.
He has been involved in the financial and securities industries
for over 33 years and has extensive operational and management
experience in bullion, securities, futures and foreign exchange
financial services business with prominent banks, international
financial institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr.
Man is currently an independent non-executive director of 21
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed in Hong Kong. He is
currently a general manager of BMI Securities Limited. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from Chinese

University of Hong Kong,.
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DIRECTORS - continued
Independent Non-executive Directors — continued

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28th January, 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 20 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. Mr. Sun is currently an independent non-executive
director of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (stock code:
909). He was an independent non-executive director of Sunlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2336) until 3rd
June, 2014 and China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group Company
Limited (stock code: 263) until 1st March, 2012. All of the

above companies are listed in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Hon Sau, Larry, aged 45, is the responsible officer of
Get Nice Futures Co. Ltd and Get Nice Securities Limited. He
has over 21 years of experience in the financial industry with
19 years in securities and futures and several years in corporate
banking. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance
from California State University, Fresno, USA.

Ms. LAM Fung Sin, aged 43, is the qualified accountant of
the Group. She holds a MBA degree from the University of
Manchester and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of

Certified Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to
being a transparent and responsible organisation which is open
and accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The directors
believe that good corporate governance practices are increasingly

important for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “CG Code”), save for the derivation

from Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained as follows:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
according to the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically set
by the Board. In addition, the Board has also established Board
Committees and has delegated to these Board Committees
various responsibilities set out in their terms of reference

respectively.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises eight directors, more than one-
third of the directors are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skills and experience

appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s businesses.
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BOARD COMPOSITION - continued

As at the date of this annual report, five of them are executive,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, chairman, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony, deputy chairman, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie,
managing director, Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”), and Mr. Lung Hon Lui, and three of the directors
are independent non-executive, namely Mr. Liu Chun Ning,
Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry.

Each of Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in the
“Biographical details of directors and senior management” of this
annual report. The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other relationships with each other save for that Mr.
Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 28th August, 2013. It sets out the approach to achieve
and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance its
effectiveness. The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board
has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise and
diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board members
will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board diversity
policy, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives form
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Board will also review and monitor from time to time the
implementation of the board diversity policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis for ensuring that the Directors and officers are
adequately protected against potential legal activities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT - continued

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, relevant reading
materials including regulatory update and seminar handouts,
etc have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man IS ' A

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony W s e

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie S

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan T i 31 51 2R

Mr. Lung Hon Lui HE VT Sk
Independent non-Executive Directors BIUkHTES
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred PR e A

Mr. Man Kong Yui SC I 8 5 AR

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor (Note 2)
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Note 1)

Notes:

(1) appointed on 28th January, 2014
(2) resigned on 28th January, 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANC

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. At least 14 days’ formal
notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings
and notices with reasonable time are given for all other ad hoc
meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda
in which a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board and
all Directors have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings. All Directors have access to Board
papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate
information which enables the Board to make an informed
decision on the matters to be discussed and considered at the
Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable

time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Directors are also provided with monthly performance and
position updates of the Group to enable the Board as a whole as

well as each Director to discharge their duties.
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SREREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS
During the year ended 31st March, 2014, thirteen Board

meetings and one general meeting have been held. Directors

EXEREEEZEEER

PEEE-NE=ZA =+ —HIEFE
EHRGRT T RERGERL TP
KA o 24 AR5 SUE M 8 Tl a7 U
J ek o R E kRGN T

may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications. Details of the attendance of the Directors in

the meetings are as follows:

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HEEEZRY/RERLEZEHAY

Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration ~Annual general

Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

EZg® FNZEE REZEE FHZEEE RRBEXE
Executive Directors YTEE
Mr. Hung Hon Man HESULE 1013 N/ARHH N/ARE N/ARE 11
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony 3 Siste 1313 NIAREA N/AZ N/ARE 0/1
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie SRt 1313 NIARER N/IARTE N/IARE 1/1
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan it B o e A 1313 N/AREH N/ATE N/ARE 11
Mr. Lung Hon Lui EERLE 713 N/AREH N/ARE N/ARE 0/1
Independent non-Executive Directors BYFHITEE
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred B 11/13 112 23 23 0/1
Mr. Man Kong Yui SIS A A 8/13 202 313 313 0/1
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Note 1) BB A (i) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor (Note 2) R &M 6 (M7£2) 413 12 1/3 23 0/1
Notes: Mzt -

(1) appointed on 28th January, 2014
(2) resigned on 28th January, 2014

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1st April, 2002 and
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ prior notice in writing
to the other. The executive Directors who were appointed on
28th April, 2011, namely Mr. Hung Sui Kwan and Mr. Lung
Hon Lui, have not entered into any service contract with the
Company and there are no fixed or proposed length of service
with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every thICC years.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS - continued

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-election at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong
Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry will retire by rotation and,

being eligible with offer themselves for re-election.

In addition, Mr. Man Kong Yui has been appointed as
independent non-executive Director for more than nine years.
Mr. Man’s further appointment will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved at the forthcoming annual general

meeting according to the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st March,
2014.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.
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EXRERBWE
CORPO

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate
with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the Chairman of the Company, provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and
foster better relationships between Directors.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, the CEO of the Company, develops
strategies for the Board’s approval, executes the strategies
agreed by the Board and leads the management of the Group’s
operation. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon
Man, the Chairman of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of sharcholders can be taken into account and the
interests of the Company and its shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Board at all-time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Sun Ka Ziang,
Henry (appointed on 28th January, 2014) and Mr. Kwong Chi
Kit Victor (resigned on 28th January, 2014) have the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters
required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the
Company.

The Board considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgement and they
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Pursuant to the levels of authority approved by the Board, the
senior management executes day-to-day operations unless the
subject matter exceeds the authority granted by the Board or
relates to any matters specifically reserved to the Board, they
would seek approval from the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i)
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable
candidates for directorship after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises three members, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr.
Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (chairman of
Nomination Committee).
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee — continued

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There
were three meetings during the year ended 31st March, 2014.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31st March, 2014 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(ii) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
and

(iii) approved and recommended the change in independent
non-executive Directors, including the resignation of Mr.
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor and appointment of Mr. Sun Ka
Ziang, Henry. The committee has considered against
objective criteria with due regard to the board diversity
policy of the Company.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee,
on named basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out
in the section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this
report.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and
ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Liu
Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka
Ziang, Henry (chairman of Remuneration Committee). The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. There were
three meetings during the year ended 31st March, 2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANC

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31st March, 2014 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group; and

(if) approved discretionary bonus to two executive Directors.
- HK$10,000,000 in cash to Mr. Hung Hon Man; and

- HK$10,000,000 in cash to Mr. Lung Hon Lui.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
to them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration
standard in the market.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and has authority to raise questions
regarding the resignation or dismissal of the auditors; overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
and risk management systems and to review the Group’s
interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee has access to and maintains an independent

communication with the external auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr.
Sun Ka Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the
day-to-day management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang,
Henry, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The principal work performed by
the Audit Committee during the year included (i) review of
interim and annual consolidated financial statements, (ii) review
of management letter provided by the external auditor, (iii)
review and discuss with the management about effectiveness of
internal control; (iv) review and monitor continuous professional
development of Directors; and (v) review the Company’s
compliance with CG Code and relevant disclosures. The Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year. There were two meetings
during the year ended 31st March, 2014. The attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee, on named basis, at committee
meetings during the year is set out in the section “Board and
Board Committee Meetings” of this report above. There has been
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee

regarding the selection and appointment of the external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the shareholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
to give a true and fair view and comply with all applicable
regulatory requirements and accounting standards. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2014, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern as at 31st March, 2014.
Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014 on a

going concern basis.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on
pages 42 to 43.

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31st March, 2014, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor, provided the

following services to the Group:

Audit services

Non-audit and taxation services
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results, and cash flows for the year.
Management provides the Board with management accounts and
updates on a monthly basis, with a view to giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position, and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties. In preparing the financial

statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(¢) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(d) ensured that the consolidated financial statements were

prepared on a going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31st March, 2014, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNAN

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR
EFFECTIVENESS

The Board is responsible to safeguard the sharecholder’s
investment and the Group’s assets as well as to achieve the
objectives of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive internal control
system is established and implemented throughout the Group
during the year to meet the Group’s particular needs and the
risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss. The Directors confirm that they have reviewed the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2014.
The review covered all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and the risk management
function as well as the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The assessment was
made after discussions with the management of the Company
and a review performed by the Audit Committee. The Board is
of the view that the existing internal control system is adequate

and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Leung Ming is the Company Secretary of the Company
and a full time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Kam confirmed that
he has complied with all the required qualifications, experience

and training requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure the investors
and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the

publication of annual reports, announcements and circulars.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS - continued

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their enquiries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees would attend and answer questions raised at the
general meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions would be
proposed at the general meeting on each substantially separate

issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company would
explain the procedures for conducting a poll before putting
a resolution to vote. The results of the voting by poll would
be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharecholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary by mail at the Company’s principal office address in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS - continued

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Sharcholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the Board and communications relating to ordinary

business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at sharcholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, there had been no

significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) provision of financial
services, including securities dealing and broking, futures
and options broking, underwriting and placements, securities
margin financing, money lending, corporate finance services;
(ii) property holding and investments in financial instruments.
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 46

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2014

are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income on page 44 to 45.

An interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share amounting to
HK$89,469,000 in aggregate was paid during the year. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.01 per share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 29th August, 2014.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31st March,
2014 is set out on page 171 to 172 of this annual report.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 19 and 21 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

48 to page 49.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31st March, 2014, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HKS$2,510,376,000 which comprised the share premium, special

reserve and retained profits.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director)
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lung Hon Lui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
Mr. Man Kong Yui
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor
(resigned on 28th January, 2014)
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(appointed on 28th January, 2014)

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Man
Kong Yui will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of

Association. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry who was appointed on 28th January,
2014 will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with provision 112 of the Company’s Articles of

Association. Being eligible, he offers himself for re-election.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Name of Director

Mr. Hung Hon Man

Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony

Mr. Shum Kin Wai,
Frankie

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan

Mr. Lung Hon Lui

Mr. Liu Chun Ning,
Wilfred

Mr. Man Kong Yui

Details of changes

With effect from 1st January, 2014,
the monthly salary of Mr. Hung has
been changed from HK$9,000 to
HK$9,450.

During the year, the Group paid a
discretionary bonus of HK$10 million
to Mr. Hung.

With effect from 1st January, 2014,
the monthly salary of Mr. Cham has
been changed from HK$23,500 to
HK$24,675.

With effect from 1st January, 2014,
the monthly salary of Mr. Shum has
been changed from HK$24,000 to
HK$25,200.

With effect from 1st January, 2014,
the monthly salary of Mr. Hung has
been changed from HK$29,000 to
HK$30,450.

With effect from 1st October, 2013,
Mr. Lung has not received any salary
nor director fee.

During the year, the Group paid a
discretionary bonus of HK$10 million
to Mr. Lung.

Mr. Liu resigned as an executive
director of Chong Hing Bank Limited
(stock code: 1111) with effect from
14th February, 2014.

With effect from 1st February, 2014,
the monthly director fee of Mr. Man
has been changed from HK$3,500 to
HK$5,000.

Mr. Man was appointed as an
independent non-executive director
of 21 Holdings Limited (stock code:
1003) with effect from 10th April,
2014.
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Name of Director Details of changes
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Mr. Sun was appointed as an
Henry independent non-executive director,
the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee with
effect from 28th January, 2014.

Mr. Sun resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Sunlink
International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2336) with effect from 3rd

June, 2014.
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Mr. Kwong resigned as an
Victor independent non-executive director,

ceased to be the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration
committee with effect from 28th
January, 2014.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 11 to 13.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie
have entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial fixed term of three years and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing

served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy agreement

The Group had entered into a tenancy agreement (as the
landlord) with a connected person, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the

Listing Rules:

EENEESH RS

BR N SCT RS 5 /55 A B e 22 ) | — B
ek 2 & A Hh 5 AR R B AT Ao B 28
0 46 22 LG 7 AT AR 8 4 &5 BCAF 7 AT AT Iy ]
AT SR A 3 > i A 2% ) 3 3 P
MiZA E AR B AER A ER LS

REXS HEBRERS

1. HEWHSE
AEE EA¥ET) CHE—ZBEANT
FIoL —TEAH B ek > ARPE LT ELRN
2 W R AN 4 ) 2 R A B A G

Name of Term Address
Transaction counterparty of agreement of premises Amount
x5 REBF2EB 15 % F 5 W) 3 2 it 4t T8
HK$
T
Tenancy made Legend Creative Ist June, 2013 to Workshop C9 and C10, 420,000

on Ist June, 2013

Enterprise Limited

31st May, 2015

11/F, Block C,

(monthly rental: as the tenant TR A Hong Kong

HK$42,000) (Note) 4838 B B PR A NH—H Industrial Centre,
hoE— =4 (fERTF) A Nos. 489-491 Castle

NH BTz HE TH=1+—H Peak Road, Kowloon,

(A : 42,0004 7C)
(Kt itE)

Note:  The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an

Executive Director and Chairman of the Company.
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DIRECTOR

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued

REXS HEBEXS &

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing 2. REBBERIFSERME
Brokerage
commission Margin loan Maximum
income paid interest paid amount of

to the Group

to the Group

margin loan

Name of connected person BEATHS for the year for the year for the year
ERE ERE
FFEEE FFEEE R
ZRE ZRES RESER
BeBA ERAE ZEEEE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Executive Directors: HTES:
Hung Hon Man and his associates sl S SEEN 1 YN 2,936 3,839 568,704
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associates HEE R HBEE AL 53,072 - -
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate YN T YN 4,224 - -
Hung Sui Kwan and his associates SRS EEN L YN 1,977 55,308 593,823
Lung Hon Lui T 3,315 25,647 601,085
Directors of certain subsidiaries FEBETHELARZES !
of the Group:
Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate REERHABE AL 1,326 - -
Cheng Wai Ho and his associate LERYEN ] YN 36,359 - -
Ho Kwok Kwan i 4 4 7,005 33,145 462,449
Cheung Chung Kiu and his associates LU VEN T Iaw 111,990 - -
Yeung Chi Hang hEE 13,117 - 45

HE (UEB L FEAITES) R A LA
Gy ¥ J& 1E H T E ARG ARYE bR
FAR ST H 2 A # A | 0 R (&
FIEE R BR A1) F AR 7 59 S 4F B A AE 2 K7
1,000,000%5 70 » FIUL > A B zc 7 MR 5 LT
HHI 25 14A.33(3) (o) T HE 8 0 4 ~F I 3R~ 4F
JEFEHE > O A R A8 ST B SR e 2 BLE o

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, were of the opinion that the transactions listed above
were on normal commercial terms where all of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an annual
basis calculated under the Listing Rules were less than 5% and
the annual consideration was less than HK$1,000,000. The
transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3)(c) of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued

3. Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions

and confirmed that the transactions were:

(a) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of

business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to

or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 34 to 36 of this

annual report, have compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
At 31st March, 2014, the interests of the Directors and their

associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code”), were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

— continued

EEcROER &

= = S aE
1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of 1L ARFEESREAGLIETZEERZ
the Company KR
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company
FRIBE®RIT MHAQFASET
EssR EEtE EREREEAE A=
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 1,342,018,583 29.99%
PSS m 2R A (1)
Mr. Lung Hon Lui Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.07%
HEE oA [ EX XN
Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in B G < 3V S S AR AR B A B Honeylink
1,342,018,583 ordinary shares of the Company which Agents Limited® fi 2 7& 24 #
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company 1,342,018,583 % ¥ 40 )X 2 HE 43 ©
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited Honeylink Agents Limited /% i 94 Ji JiZ
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is GRS ARAT - A
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man. BT BEAT IR Hy Wb 9 S0 S A A
H o
2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of 2. REQARZEMBARGHESAER
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a NE((HEFRS5]) 2BREELIGET
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company CEREEELER2FE
Percentage
Number of of the issued
non-voting non-voting
deferred deferred share
Name of Director Capacity shares* held of GNS
LTRSS
FREBERERE ERITERERE
EspR EEMtE EERBE EZER 2B
Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
S 'S Ha A A
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
e del Lg% XN
40,000,000 100%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
— continued

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company — continued

* The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to

dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2014, none of the
Directors nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that the following shareholders had an interest of 5% or
more in the issued share capital of the Company and this interest
represents long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

of the Company.

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name Capacity

=L EEME

Hung Hon Man
B H S22 W R A (AT

Beneficial owner (Note)

i AN (B 7E)

Honeylink Agents Limited
(“Honeylink”)

Held by controlled corporation (Noze)

FERRK

Mo E-PE=H=+—H > BREHEEK
W B SE 3361 AR A R E T2 EER
FOE G TR B > DA B A AR A
2 B EEAT B AN 5%l LA b 2 BE 5 1T B RE 4R Y
AR ) A R T (ELO. 195 o0 ¥ 4 B 2 A -

i)

(a) AL A EEAR AT (EO. 178 70 2 2 0 i
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
FiE®T MHEXRRASET
EBEREA RAzBDH
1,342,018,583 29.99%
1,342,018,583 29.99%

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
1,342,018,583 ordinary shares of the Company which are
held by Honeylink, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon
Man.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share

capital of the Company at 31st March, 2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

AT kSO AR W 2 B Honeylink
FEA 2 AN T11,342,018,583 1% 8 A i
Z R4 o Honeylink 2y it 3% Ji§ 52 2 #f
BRI 2 AR AR > HAeRE
BATIRAS RSO R TR

BR b SCRT B8R A - R S F A = A
= B AR E SR RN A AT AT A
A A A BT IR 2 A B e i 5RO

BrRBRE

AR ) 2 4 ) ALK R K A0 B A ) 5B
Tof Iy 5 0 1 90 T 8 S0 O RO A 3 > B
L5 AR 2 )R ) A R R 2 3
iR O -

RIKEFGHE

A £ R ARAR M 31 2 5 O AR A T S
e O
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2014.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$20,000.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 14 to 29 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and is decided by the Board, as
authorized by the Sharcholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual duties,
responsibilities and performance and, the prevailing market

conditions.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Company considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent of the management
of the Company and are free from any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent

judgements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Hung Hon Man

26th June, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliry)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to
170, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st March, 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A
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Auditor’s Responsibility — continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
March, 2014, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26th June, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-T-WE=A=+-RAL5FE

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2014 2013
—e-mE | ook
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’000
b 2 FHR it
(restated)
(KEHE )
Continuing operations BFEKERK
Revenue W 4 7 227,818 175,464
Other operating income HoAth & g A 9a 1,773 582
Other gains and losses RN E T Fi] 9b 21,303 3,446
Depreciation e (6,869) (6,888)
Commission expenses 1H 4 B 3¢ (14,534) (10,085)
Staff costs B LA 10 (14,408) (14,528)
Other expenses HoAMh BH 7 (24,461) (24,967)
Finance costs Tl AR 11 (260) (381)
Profit before taxation it AT v A1) 12 190,362 122,643
Taxation Td IH 14 (26,745) (18,387)
Profit for the year from continuing 2K H FEAHACE 7 ~
operations A B ek 163,617 104,256
Discontinued operations E2RIEEK
Profit (loss) for the year from KECEILERZ
discontinued operations A A B i A (5 18) 17 498,137 (213,167)
Profit (loss) for the year AR FE RS A (s 8) 661,754 (108,911)
Other comprehensive income At 2 T U £
Items that may be reclassified HEZ ] GEEH 7=
subsequently to profit or loss [ a2 HH
Exchange difference arising B e R T A
on translation (33) 239
Fair value loss on available-for-sale Mt ERE
investments AINIEN i (1,232) -
Deferred tax arising on revaluation ;AL ] B R R A R
of available-for-sale investments ZIERERLIA 36 203 -
Items thar will not be reclassified B E S E W ar L
to profit or loss HH
Surplus on revaluation of properties ¥ 3 ik & ik 19 3,573 1,386
Deferred tax arising on revaluation Yy EE Al E A 2
of properties % JiE B TH 36 (590) (229)
Other comprehensive income A i A A T U B
for the year 1,921 1,396
Total comprehensive income A A JBE 4 TH WAL 4R
(expense) for the year (B %) #a%0 663,675 (107,515)
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HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2014 2013
—E-mE TR
NOTE HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
B3t TERT T T
(restated)
(R 5)
Profit (loss) for the year AR N LA AR AR
attributable to: il (E51H) -
Owners of the Company KNtk 2PN
— from continuing operations — K B RS 163,617 104,256
— from discontinued operations —RHEKIEEH 323,789 (131,885)
487,406 (27,629)
Non-controlling interests e R £
— from discontinued operations —H &I ER 174,348 (81,282)
661,754 (108,911)
Total comprehensive income PUF AL RE R A 4E
(expense) attributable to: AT (B 52) A% -
Owners of the Company LN/NGIE XN 489,327 (26,233)
Non-controlling interests JEHEIEAE 45 174,348 (81,282)
663,675 (107,515)
Earnings (loss) per share HREM () 16
From continuing and discontinued REFELEERR
operations BRIEEHK
— Basic —HA HK10.90 cents/&1ll | HK(0.62) centsit Ll
- Diluted — HK10.90 cents/&1ll | HK(0.62) centsit Al
From continuing operations REFELERY
— Basic — A HK3.66 cents/All | HK2.33 cents Al
~ Diluted — HK3.66 cents/All | HK2.33 cents Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZT—MNF=A=+—H
At 31st March, 2014

2014 2013
—E-NmF E A
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
it & FET T#5 7T
Non-current assets I i B &
Prepaid lease payments T A B RO0H 18 - 564,678
Property and equipment L E & ] 19 133,853 872,903
Construction in progress 1EHE TR 20 - 880
Investment properties wEYE 21 46,200 1,365,600
Intangible assets eI & 22 8,955 8,955
Goodwill ik 23 15,441 15,441
Other assets oAb & 25 4,682 3,476
Deferred tax assets A% A0 A T 36 734 558
Loans and advances B3R TR 26 263,199 2,400
Deposit %4 27 - 50,000
Investments in securities R E 30 89,002 21,770
562,066 2,906,661
Current assets i) &

Accounts receivable JAEE i e T 28 1,786,671 1,456,675
Loans and advances EOSE TN 26 357,132 91,260
Prepaid lease payments TE AT AR B OR 18 - 38,957
Inventories & 29 - 1,736

Prepayments, deposits and T FRE - HE K 37
other receivables At JE SRR T 639,319 9,653
Taxation recoverable AT ] o TH 273 314
Investments in securities AR E 30 79,438 31,978
Bank balances — client accounts WITH B —FFIRF 31 796,917 198,372

Bank balances — general WATH B — — RIRF 32
accounts and cash B4 812,432 213,628
4,472,182 2,042,573
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At 31st l\/larch 2014

2014 2013
—E-{F e
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET T
Current liabilities i B A
Accounts payable JRE A R IH 33 845,718 299,742
Accrued charges and other JE w2 K HoAth
accounts payable JE Ak R 3 26,454 22,444
Amounts due to non-controlling YE X333 E
shareholders 34 124,688 431,846
Taxation payable JRE A B IE 150,351 3,631
Bank borrowings SRAT I & 35 - 169,627
1,147,211 927,290
Net current assets i B A AR 3,324,971 1,115,283
Total assets less current liabilities A8 E ) A 3,887,037 4,021,944
Non-current liabilities E =Y
Bank borrowings W|ITEE 35 - 162,840
Deferred tax liabilities R A Fi TH A ] 36 5,840 138,011
5,840 300,851
Net assets & E 3,881,197 3,721,093
Capital and reserves A K it A
Share capital JeA 38 447,348 447,348
Reserves Tt fh 3,282,323 2,927,200
Equity attributable to owners Z /NI ¥EWN SR E
of the Company 3,729,671 3,374,548
Non-controlling interests ¥ IR HE A 151,526 346,545
Total equity HRE 2 3,881,197 3,721,093

The financial statements on pages 44 to 170 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June,
2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man

HEX

DIRECTOR

#HH

FAHERI70RZ B IRER M EHGR
T —TUAENH A7 H e R A b )88
A R B AR

HF

Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
BEHER
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_Z-—NWF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

Atributable to owners of the Company

ARTHE N
Share
Properties  Investments ~ option and Non-
Share Share Special  revaluation  revaluation  warrant  Translation  Retained controlling
Notes apial  premium feserve reserve reserve reserve feserve profits Toul  incerests Toul

WEER BE O RRES
Tk ROEEE OBARE  BE EGRE BB EANE  REEN 4F HERER 4%
HKSO0)  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO  HKSO00  HKSO0)  HKS000  HKSOM  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKS000
Wi FEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  FEx  TEx TEx TEx TEx TiEx

(Note)
()
Balances at 1st April, 2012 REF-ZENA-A 258 738 1139 1337 6399 X0, WM OSBRI 83866 39564
Lossfor the year KERER - - - - - - - 6w & BL8Y (108911
Other comprehensive income KEEZEbETRE
for the year
Exchange difference arising AR ERER
on translation - - - - - - 39 - 239 - 39
Surplus on revaluation NEEHLS
of propertics - - - 1,386 - - - - 1,386 - 1,386
Deferred tax arising on revaluation EEREEZ
of properties EEHE - - - (229) - - - - (229) - (29)
- - - 1,157 - - 19 - 1,396 - 1,39
Total comprehensive expense KEELRHR AR
for the year - - - 1,157 - - 239 (27,609 (26233) (81,282 (107,515
Dividends recognised as distribution B ek g 15 - - - - - - - (89470)  (89,470) - (89470)
Release upon expiry of share RERSZRRER
options and warrants granted AR B - - - - - (23,381) - 23381 - - -
Recagnition of share-based BB Z At
payment expenses 39(b) - - - - - 47 - - in - 47
Dividends paid to non-contolling B T & 2 R &
interests - - - - - - - - - (6,039) (6,039)
Balances at 31st March, 2013 REF-=F
SRET-HZER 447348 2089,139 123337 7,556 - 6,703 461 500004 3374548 34654 3721093
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Atributable to owners of the Company

HE-_ZT NS =
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

B IEFE

LY 2N
Share
Properties  Investments ~ option and Non-
Share Share Special  revaluation  revaluation  warrant  Translation  Retained controlling
Notes apial  premium feserve feserve reserve reserve reserve profits Toul  interests Totl
BRIER
VT RE ARER
RA RbiEg R B ElhbE Bl EREE  REEA A% FRRER AR
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Wi T TEx THx  Tex  TEx TEx TEx T TEx TEx Tix
(Note)
3
Profic for the year RAERA - - - - - - - A6 4706 174348 661754
Other comprehensive income RS2 TR
for the year
Exchange difference arising BEEEVERER
on translation - - - - - - (33) - (33) - (33)
Surplus on revaluation NEEfRRS
of propertics - - - 3573 - - - — 3573 = 3573
Deferred tax arising on WEEfHEEZ
revaluation of properties EiERE - - - (590) - - - - (590) - (590)
Fair value loss on afkhEREz
available-for-sale investments MHER - - - - (1,30) - - - (1,232) - (1,32)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation B B E
of available-forsale investments 2 EAEBLR - - - - 03 - - - 203 - 03
- - - 1983 (1,029) - (33) - 1921 - 1,921
Total comprehensive income REEZAHREAH
for the year - - - 2,983 (1,029) - (33) 487406 489327 174,348 063,675
Dividends recognised as distribution Bl RS 15 - - - - - - - (134204)  (134204) - (134.204)
Release upon expiy of share optons 1B A1 e M 39(b) - - - - - (6,703) - 6,703 - - -
Dividends paid to non-contolling B T % 2 .6
interests - - - - - - - - - (369,367)  (369,367)
Balances at 31st March, 2014 RN
SAZT-HZER 738 19039 133 1059 (109) - 08 89909 370671 151526 388117
Note: MEE -

The special reserve of the Group arose as a result of the group
reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) completed on 16th May, 2002, which
principally involved the exchange of shares of the Company with all the
issued share capital of Get Nice Incorporated. The details are set out in
the prospectus dated 24th May, 2002 issued by the Company.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book value of a
subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to
the listing of the Company’s shares, as well as the difference between
the consolidated sharcholders’ funds of the acquired subsidiaries and
the nominal value of the Get Nice Incorporated’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares.

ASE T Z R R A TSR i — B AR AN
Hog Rz e EAH ((EM]) s - Ef
W R LA R A 32 # Get Nice Incorporated Z 42
HRE AT A o WE RO A 2 A A T AR

T =AY P A

5 ] ol A R 3 B RS 2 w0 T B — A e A
K2 IR (C R A A /s % B g Ak >
BRLAR N ) AE AR W) B Ay b T R A AT 2 A R A
T B AT 2 I O3 TET (B 2 M A 25 30 LA B T i S
JBAFZEA MR E S > B Get Nice Incorporated
FEAS N B Ay b TR HE AT AR IRE 2 i T S AT
Z A T AEL 1Y) 25 38 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZT-WNF=A=1+—BLLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2014 2013
—e-mE | o=k
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
it & FET T#5 7T
(restated)
(KET)
Operating activities 1 2B
Profit (loss) for the year ARAEBE i A (5 H8) 661,754 (108,911)
Adjustments for: FEER
Income tax P 75 i 32,223 (5,213)
Depreciation e 19 30,688 103,058
Amortisation of prepaid TELA A R T
lease payments 9,653 38,610
Net recognition (reversal) of IR IAH 2 WH 1R
impairment loss on Al (F1m]) 1F R
— loans and advances — B T BAGK - (34)
— loans to securities — IR
margin clients HFEER 1,657 755
Share-based payment expenses PR SCAY 22 32 i 39(b) - 472
Fair value change on investment BEYEN NE
properties 55 1) 21 (1,730) 150,800
Interest expenses F RS 2,189 10,754
Interest income FE A (187,617) (132,386)
Gain on disposal of hotel complex H 6 T AR A K
and certain assets T EE 2 g 17 (539,143) -
Gain on disposal of property 5 W 26 K s
and equipment Z W 4 - (220)
Fair value change on financial F 0N FUAB A 18 2 T R
assets at fair value through ZEMEREN
profit or loss UNPIIR ] (20,267) 3,859
Operating cash flows before BEEEEEH 2
movements in working capital Kg B = (10,593) 61,538
Changes in other assets HoAfth ¥ 2 2 ) (1,2006) (573)
Changes in accounts receivable JRE Wi B T 2 3 (331,653) 14,721
Changes in loans and advances B B GR  E) (526,671) (23,441)
Changes in inventories fFarsd) 1,106 (53)
Changes in prepayments, deposits AT FIE ~ e K
and other receivables S Ath B SRR T 2 5 ) 48,220 49,297
Changes in financial assets held i ﬁ; HE g E
for trading *@JJ (21,255) 15,840
Changes in bank balances TR B FIRE
— client accounts Zﬁﬁﬂ (598,545) (27,163)
Changes in accounts payable JRE A R TH 2 4 ) 545,976 45,096
Changes in accrued charges and JRE it 2 P R H At A
other accounts payable WRIH 2 5 ) 4,010 (5,176)
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For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

2014 2013
—E-MmF —E =
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FHERT T 0
(restated)
(% F1)
Cash (used in) generated from “eE (i) s 4
operations (890,611) 130,086
Interest income received B AR A 171,711 132,386
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BT 7 s F) 15 B (18,196) (19,948)
Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax paid &1 & # /& F 55 3%
I 153 B - (715)
Net cash (used in) generated from maEZERS () s
operating activities B 4 (737,096) 241,809
Investing activities & EH
Purchases of available-for-sale Wi B AR
financial assets 4 RE E (60,402) —
Purchase of financial assets 1 B S
designated at fair value N FOAB A 18 25 E R
through profit or loss 2 & Rl E (14,000) (4,800)
Disposal of a subsidiary B JE S T - (2,995)
Proceeds on disposal of property W€ K 2
and equipment I 15 #CH - 391
Proceeds on disposal of investment A 1 g\% E i
properties IE - 72,193
Proceeds on disposal of hotel HH B I AR M R T
complex and certain assets B 2 AR A 17 2,600,000 -
Transaction cost paid on disposal Hh B I R M I
of hotel complex and HTEEZCAH
certain assets g WA 17 (42,494) -
Additions of construction TE & LR
in progress 20 - (6,002)
Purchase of property and i 8 W 3 st
equipment 19 (916) (13,573)
Purchase of investment properties L 3=Ei's-L/ES 21 (870) (16,500)
Net cash generated from investing BEXRG B FEE
activities 2,481,318 28,714
Financing activities il SE s
Changes in amounts due to ORI 2 B JBE SR 3k A
non-controlling shareholders 2 ) (307,158) 28,133
Interest paid AT FLE (2,189) (9,817)
Dividends paid e E (503,571) (89,624)
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBAT S (332,467) (170,197)
Net cash used in financing activities RlE ST 2 4 (1,145,385) (241,505)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2014 2013
—g-mE | %=
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FERT THTT
(restated)
()
Net increase in cash and e M E&EETFH
cash equivalents Epl| 598,837 29,018
Effect of foreign exchange HI R T 3R 4 i > 5 2
rate changes (33) 239
Cash and cash equivalents AR B 4 B B 4 A (E
at beginning of the year THH 213,628 184,371
Cash and cash equivalents RS N &% E
at end of the year JHH 812,432 213,628
Represented by: M
Bank balances — general accounts RATHG R — — IR 812,405 212,665
Cash B 27 963
812,432 213,628
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1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Its substantial shareholder is Honeylink
Agents Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands with limited liability of which the entire share

capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 46.

Certain subsidiaries incorporated in Macau engaged in the
hotel and entertainment business which were discontinued
upon the completion of the disposal of hotel complex
and certain assets on 17th July, 2013. The discontinued

operations are set out in note 17.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

—REE

AN FREB 2B A AL 225
— NN = KBS kB
W) B R AR R B R A
BHAEXLH A RS A Lo HE
% R ZyHoneylink Agents Limited ©
Honeylink Agents Limited % i 5% Jif Ji 2
RS R L 2 ABRA T - AR
APPSO AE T A A

Ay B G A I R T SR
Motk B AR [ 2 "L E R P ER o

A0 R 2 E B Py SR R LY
& 0 W) 2 B S WO B 46

A T BRPY R M B SE 2 B JeS 2 ] e 2
NG b e 36 - A B WNIE &S

MEATEE —FR _F—=4FtH
b HSE G %R O A AR -

O % 1k 368 2 RE R HUR M sk 17
AN A S FL R 2 A ([ AR ) 2 4%

o W R AR 2 Rl 2 T RE B W T
23 .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT-WNF=A=1+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised standards and interpretations applied in

the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities: Transition Guidance

HKEFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKEFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKEFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKEFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose

information about:

(a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial

instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively. The application of the amendments has had
no material impact on the amounts reported in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements but has resulted in more
disclosures relating to the Group’s offsetting arrangements,
master netting agreements or similar agreements. Detailed

disclosures are set out in note 6.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories or

value in use for impairment assessment purposes).
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o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement — continued

HKEFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13
is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.
Other than the additional disclosures as set out in note
6, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total

comprehensive income.
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HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI REEBTEEBHBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA &
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued
New and revised standards and interpretations issued but CEAEERERZHFTRLEITE
not yet effective AlRk2R
The Group has not early applied the following new and A 4 I 4 RLRE R 51 2 A AE
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet HAE R T ET S AE ET s S R
effective: HER -
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities' BHMBEREERSE0% . REEE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 BB BT AR 105
R FHER H275
BT
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BEMEREENENS  GORLR A EER 2
Interests In Joint Operations® 2Bl LEE3 R
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods HlGTHEASICEREE W2 ZIE R
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation® G R 3855 2 B3] FikZ BE
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee HikazER g0 2 BT RERAGE:
Contributions [ 8 itk
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of T i I 3R e ) 0% A B At
and HKFRS 7 HKEFRS 9 and Transition B B B o UL WM
Disclosures’ Ak BT F B
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and FiatEERE BT cREERSBAR
Financial Liabilities' b4 s o]
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Bk gt EISIcE 2 BT KRB E 2
Non-financial Assets' EX i
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Bl GsHENE0% 2 B3 i LR EE LW
Continuation of Hedge LEiva s
Accounting'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs FEMHREEN BT FEMHREEN
2010-2012 Cycle* EENE-T-TE
2% AR
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs FHBEREEAM 2 BT BB IMEREEN
2011-2013 Cycle? EEgE-T——F
EZF SRR
HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments® 7 i B A B S0 SHRITA
HKERS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ B BRE RS 4  BEETRES
HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies' FEERTERSRE AR
ZEE)—wBH
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist ! Ao E-E— A — BB HEM R Z
January, 2014 A B 00 AR 2
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2 A E AL H — He L E M R 2
2014 A JEE 3 ] A 2
’ Available for application — the mandatory effective date will ? AL E T — 5 AR B AR T T
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are T I S T HE R S5O B% i 1 A R PR B
finalised 1% i €
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 4 A E AL H — He L E M R 2
2014, with limited exceptions AF R A R o e BRI AN L 2 BR
ah
B Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements 5 AR —RNFE—H—H B MR
beginning on or after 1st January, 2016 T A B A T 5 R A M ) I R
A8k
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist o WoE—ARNFE—H - HEHEZHGZ
January, 2016 A B 00 AR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for

hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss

was presented in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments — continued

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management

activities have also been introduced.

HKEFRS 9 is available for application but the mandatory
effective date has not yet been fixed. The application of
HKFRS 9 might affect the measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. The directors of the Company are still
in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of

HKEFRS 9.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of

set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 may result
in more disclosure being made with regard to offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities in the future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.

BE_T-—WNF=A=T-HBILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

P& PR 377 R ASAE BT B 78 B 35 3
HER -

ERMBREEY BRI A
~

AT — MR T T 505 1 B = L
AU < SRT T BLE A
1 1 0 5 50 5 8 DK
R PE A B A 1
TR TR B A S TR
T 10 9 IR 2 R AEL A <
5+ RS A0 T
R SRS » S5 SO B A 728
W% < 9T L 51 A8 0 i 5 A
BB LB T B

7 Y 5 R Y R 5 9 5wl AR T4
R T H R AR o 7 o B A
e U 25 9 5% 2 T T HE R R AR I <
B 2R o A SR TE BTl BR
A 7 s T 5 A R RN SRR 2 R o

BB EAERR BT ERHEE
He@MAEzEH]

W R SR 3258 2 B ET G H AT
A B e A B R R SR E
9 JE T[] o BRI - A B AE T
I [ H AR A AT A3k 58 ) AT 1K
A A0 T ey 5 R M A ) 2 AR

A ) 2T R T % 4 A b A
RIEE3298 2 B RT T RE & H B H AR il &
Al 7 B < M 2 IR AR 2

B ©

FTESFEE
BEMBEmERIRETEGRAA S
WM 2 7 s T 5 it e R T A o
S R A MBS IR AR E B A L
Ji A BR 2 w8 25 b R R R A i A
W 51l 88 7€ 22 70k 1 40 o L€

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

D is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.
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o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable
to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.c. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment

in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

D deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are

measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised

as of that date.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit

or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step.
Any additional acquisition did not affect the previously

recognised goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less any accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

services provided in the normal course of business.

(a) Revenue arising from financial services is recognised on

the following basis:

o Commission income for broking business is

recorded as income on a trade date basis;

o Underwriting commission income, sub-
underwriting commission income, placing
commission and sub-placing commission are
recognised as income in accordance with the
terms of the underwriting agreement or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have

been completed;

*  Advisory and clearing and handling fee income
are recognised when the relevant transactions
have been arranged or the relevant services have

been rendered; and

*  Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis using the effective interest
method, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3. TEEFHHER-&

— continued
Revenue recognition — continued WEmRE—E
(b) Revenue arising from hotel and entertainment (b) 1P M % B 4 g B i 4% DT AR M

operations is recognised on the following basis:

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised
upon the provision of the accommodation
services. Revenue from food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services are recognised upon

the provision of goods and services;

Revenue arising from provision of gaming related
marketing and business promotion services in a
casino is recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered and the Group is entitled to
the share of gross win and gross loss in respect
of the operating performance of the gaming
operator. The revenue is recognised based on
the established rates for the gaming wins, after
deduction of special gaming tax and other related
taxes to the Macau Government, which reflect

the gross inflow of economic benefits to the
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administrative expenses relating to the operations 2 Y A 4R T R I I R AR
of the casino are borne by the Group and are G B 5 3R TR R A A 4E ()
recognised as expenses of the Group in the B2 s &

consolidated financial statements; and

Service income is recognised when the services are

o MBS BRI S R e R o

provided.

(c) Rental income under operating leases is recognised in (c) A7 T4 1 FH 8 Wi A FH 9T BT TR
the profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods I DLAE O R 4R N
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative R M B A R R B BB e M A
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits i L B A A 2 A3 2 K
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease > RUAE R G o M AR T A A B B
incentives granted are recognised in the profit or loss HOA 8 A5 o e RE 2 e i A A
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments BRI — 4y o
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment including leasehold land and
hotel complex, are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings, other than hotel complex, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined

using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation

surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other items, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or fair
value of items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair value using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,

first-out method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. Intangible assets of the Group which
have indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment of non-financial assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

*  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising from remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss in the period excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
other gains and loss. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in note 6.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS financial assets or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables or (b) financial assets at FVTPL or (c)
held-to-maturity investments. The Group designated certain
debt securities as AFS financial assets on initial recognition

of those items.

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposits, other receivables, amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders and bank balances are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

Accounts receivable and loans and advances that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial assets is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are classified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants and options issued by the Company to be
settled by issuing a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments for a fixed amount of cash are equity
instruments. On initial recognition, these warrants and
options are recognised at fair value in share option and
warrant reserve. Upon exercise of the warrants and options
and the allotment of new shares, the cash proceeds received
are recognised in share capital and share premium, and the
related share option and warrant reserve is reclassified to

share premium.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
accounts payable, amounts due to non-controlling
sharcholders and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate

method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an

effective interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/service providers

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the goods or services received are recognised as expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve), when the Group obrtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services

qualify for recognition as assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

— continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
lease in which the entire lease is classified as operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leaschold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for
as property and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease

is classified as an operating lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group using exchange rates at the rate of prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short term time deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less.

3.
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4, AT TEERZZETERR

UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the management has made various estimates based on
past experience, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements within the next financial

year are disclosed below.

Impairment losses on loans and advances and accounts

receivable

The Group periodically reviews its loans and advances and
accounts receivable to assess whether impairment losses
exist. In determining whether impairment losses should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the Group has individually
evaluated its loans and advances and accounts receivable
for impairment after taking into account the value of
the underlying collateral of each borrower, and the latest
financial position and other information available of those
borrowers in default of settlement to determine the net
present value of expected future cash inflow. If the financial
conditions of the clients of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
repayments, additional impairment losses may be required.
As at 31st March, 2014, the carrying amount of loans and
advances and accounts receivable are HK$620,331,000
(2013: HK$93,660,000) and HK$1,786,671,000 (2013:
HK$1,456,675,000), net of allowance for impaired debts
of HK$18,000 (2013: HK$18,000) and HK$17,615,000
(2013: HK$15,965,000), respectively.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued
Fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company use their
judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments that are not quoted in an active
market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. As at 31st March, 2014 and
2013, debt securities and convertible notes designated
as financial assets at FVITPL are determined based on
valuation techniques that incorporate assumptions that
are not entirely supported by market observable data. The
carrying amount of the debt securities and convertible
notes are HK$16,534,000 (2013: HK$16,613,000) and
HK$15,851,000 (2013: HK$19,487,000) respectively.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong was determined by an independent firm of
professional valuers and by the directors of the Company.
The valuation performed was arrived at with reference
to recent market prices for similar properties at similar
locations with total fair value of HK$46,200,000 (2013:
HK$43,600,000) as at 31st March, 2014. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to recent market prices would result
in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount of

gain or loss reported in profit or loss.
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UNCERTAINTY - continued
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March,
2014, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$15,441,000
(2013: HK$15,441,000). No impairment loss (2013: nil)
was recognised during the year, details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 23.

Tax provision and tax losses

During the year, the hotel complex and certain assets related
to the hotel and entertainment operations were disposed of,
resulting in a gain on the disposal as disclosed in note 17.
The management has made a tax provision on the gain with
the assumption that the tax losses brought forward from
previous years have been tentatively agreed by the local tax
authority and can therefore be utilised. In case where the
local tax authority raises further comments on the tax losses
brought forward, a significant recognition of additional tax

in the profit or loss for the year may be required.

As at 31st March, 2014, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
HK$186,557,000 (2013: HK$809,889,000) due to the
majority of the balances are subject to further approval
of local tax authority. In addition, the realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are more than expected, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the year in which such a

recognition takes place.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the amounts due to non-controlling sharecholders and bank
borrowings as disclosed in notes 34 and 35 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital as disclosed in note 38, reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in consolidated statement of changes
in equity. The management reviews the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SF(FR)R throughout both years.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets 4 Al

Fair value through profit 203 FefE s 18 2 7 R
or loss
— held for trading —fHEE®E
— designated — 48 E

Loans and receivables ALK I RE R
(including cash and Efﬁfﬁﬂ‘z&
cash equivalents) He%SHEHEA)

Available-for-sale investments IRE N =i

Financial liabilities G AE
Amortised cost 8 B i A

6. E@MIH

EEEWMIA

2014 2013

—E-NF —x—=
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000
FHET T#IT
62,904 3,698
46,366 50,050
4,652,570 2,017,598
59,170 -
987,996 1,080,276

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in securities, accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposit, bank balances, accounts payable,
bank borrowings and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y y

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to accounts receivable, loans and advances, bank
balances and bank borrowings. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to convertible notes
and debt securities held by the Group. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
Group closely manages its exposure arising from margin
financing and other lending activities undertaken by
allowing an appropriate margin on the interest received and

paid by the Group.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets
and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk

management section of this note.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate
and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR?”) arising

from the Group's variable interest rate instruments.

As at 31st March, 2014, if the interest rate of accounts
receivable and loans and advances had been 50 basis points
(2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower, the Group’s profit
before taxation would increase/decrease by HK$9,507,000
(2013: loss before taxation would decrease/increase by

HK$5,395,000).
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk — continued

The sensitivity analysis above are prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for the bank
balances of the Group as they are not subject to significant

cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rate
arising from the Group’s fixed interest convertible notes and

debt securities.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as the directors
of the Company consider the convertible notes and debt
securities are not subject to significant fair value interest

rate risk.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities, convertible notes and
investment fund. The directors of the Company manage
the exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of these
financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices
of the relevant listed equity securities and quoted prices of

the investment fund.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Market risk — continued

Other price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 20% (2013: 20%) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the Group’s profit before taxation for
the year would increase/decrease by HK$16,452,000/
HK$16,334,000 (2013: loss before taxation would decrease/
increase by HK$7,250,000/HK$6,707,000), as a result
of changes in the fair value of listed equity securities and

investment fund.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the
group entities are denominated in the functional currency
of the respective entities and, in the case of Macau
Pataca (“MOP”) and United States dollars (“US$”), the
exposures are limited as MOP and US$ are pegged to HK$
respectively. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented on the currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due. Impairment allowances are made for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.
Significant changes in the economy or environment of
a particular industry segment could result in losses that
are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages

its exposure to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes
in relation of accounts receivable, loans and advances,
other receivables, convertible notes and debt securities by
placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation
to any borrower or issuer, or groups of borrowers, and
to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are
monitored on a revolving basis and subject to a quarterly or

more frequent review.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis
of the ability of borrowers, issuers and potential borrowers
to meet interest and principal repayment obligations and by
changing these lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral

and corporate and personal guarantees.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited as the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The credit risk on other receivables from the disposal
of the Assets, as disclosed in note 17, is limited as the
counterparties are subsidiaries of Galaxy Entertainment
Group Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited with strong financial position.

The exposure of credit risk on debt securities is limited as
they are issued or guaranteed by the holding companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the

liquidity gap.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEAREEEEREE &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE-E
Liquidity and interest risk tables i B & R F 5 g 9 7
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining T 3R FE Al AN A T A AR PR e R
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the P Z R ERG HR o N RRESE
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up 2 A R G B B 4 U A (A AR [ AT
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities s RER B mmE o FER
according to the earliest date on which the Group can TR ERASHSRE o [ R4
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and Uit KRR | — 4 BT A R 2 AR T
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total B —5 2 B 240 RERF b
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying ALAG B A R T B ELL R A KB &R
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents B MEA B B ROl A e R
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the R GE & M BRI R Z REME -
instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Carrying
Weighted More than amount at
average  Repayable 1 month and Total  the end of
effective on  Lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  reporting
interest rate demand 1 month 1 year Lyear  cash flows petiod
mE¥HE  AEEX -fiRz AERRE RESHR
BBAZ &g -fAR -fh BE-£ REHE ZREE
% HKS 000 HK$’ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
[0 Tk Tt Tt Fibx Tt T
At 315t March, 2014 R-2-BE=A=+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 @ HE &
Accounts payable TR 0t0 £ 0.25% 765,252 80,482 - - 845,734 845,718
Other accounts payable RN IRE - 15,962 1,628 - - 17,590 17,590
Amounts due to non-controlling e E ]
shareholders - 124,688 - - - 124,088 124,088
090 8110 - SO 98799
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

tRMITHEH-&
HERMEEAERKE &

REEL R &
LB B 2 T g 9 7 — A

Carrying
Weighted More than amount at
average  Repayable 1 month and Tol  theend of
effective on  Less than lessthan~ More than undiscounted  reporting
interest rate demand 1 month 1 year Iyear  cash flows period
miErsy AR o GE AMRRE  REERA
{3k g —MARK —Fh BE-F RBAR RN
% HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
ARt T#r  Fi#x  FiEx  FiEx FiEx T
At 31t March, 2013 R=2-ZF=A=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 374 ¢ MAE
Accounts payable FERRE 00E025% 12689 16919 3707 - W7 199742
Other accounts payable HA AR - 15,220 1,001 - - 16,221 16,221
Amounts due to non-controlling VeI EY]
shareholders - 431,846 - - - 431,846 431,846
Bank borrowings Rivfig HIBOR + 2% - 1416 159000 170360 34353 33467
Bk
AR 8
573,915 184,362 162,728 170,360 1,091,365 1,080,276

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for its financial assets. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of
the financial assets, including interests that will be earned
on those assets, except for those financial assets which are
not repayable on demand, the analysis is based on when
the Group anticipates that the cash flows will occur. The
difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument included in the maturity
analysis which are not included in the carrying amount of
the financial asset on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The inclusion of information on financial assets is
necessary in order to understand the Group’s liquidity risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

HE_ZT N4 e
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

6. $RITH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

REEL R &
LB B 2 R 5 B 9 7 — A

Carrying
Weighted amount at
average  Repayable Between Tol  theend of
effective o Lessthan Ito  Jmonths  Between  Between Over undiscounted ~ reporting
interestrate ~ demand  Imonth  Imomths  tolyer ltolyeas 2toSyears Syews  Undated  cash flows period
nEYE  AREX @A FEREE REEER
REAE RE -fAn -2Z@R E-§  -ERE CERY BREE ERE MESE  ZREE
% HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Apt TEr TR T Tt TExr TR TEx T T TEx
At3lst March, 2014 R-§-ME=A=1-R
Non-derivative financial assets i {7E S HER
Accounts receivable TR Hong Kong Prime 1,745,457 41,776 - - - - - - LT 1786671
Rate + 2% 04.25%
S LY
mEE4E
Bank balances - client accounts BiGB-EFRF 001% 796917 - - - - - - - T 9617
Bank balances - geneal accouns 4748 - — IR
ad ash ki 0% SI6Ns W8T 150 - - - - SR V1) X
Loans and advances BHRAS Variable inerest at - DL S (5 ) B A U] B9 10078 - S %) R/ KD
Hong Kong Prime
Rate + 2% to 3% o
fied interestat
9% to 4%
IRERRENEmER
I EEAR
AfEEUE
HAZEEAE
Depostsand otherreceables SRR R MENGUR Moo £ 4.1% - 2003 380 651950 - - - RN 51 G %)
Financd ases held for mading ~— #IEREZ BRHE - - - - - - - - 62904 62904 62,904
Financial assets designated BERRARERRR
sufTIL el - - - - - - - - B% Bw B
ARS investments ikt ERE 6875% 1 E 12875% - 176 S B 15 N 5 S B w0
30874 316 184341 87846 8243 298404 S 03 489612 4788625
Other financial assets ifteREE
Financial asets designated EEAELMERER
saFTIL ERLEHAR o ish S 1 - U (1 A - S 1> B K )
WO MM IS SRE6 3 3K SMEB AT 4R
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEAREEEEREE &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued REELEE-E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B B R F 5 B 5 7 — A
Cartying
Weighted amount at
wenage  Repayable Between Towl  theendof
effetive o Lesthan To  Jmomths  Beween  Beoween Over undiscounted ~ reportng
interest rate demand  Tmonth  3monds  olyar Twolyas  2wofyers Syews  Undaed  cash flows period
mEF  AEER =fif ARAE  REEK
g -EAn -E=ER P-F 0 -ERE CERF O BERE ERE NEAE (KAl

HAE
% HKSO0 RSO0 HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSON  HKSOW  HKSGM  HKSOM0  HKSOM0  HKS00
Bt TEr TR TR T TR TR T e T

At 315t March, 2013 H-F-ZEZRZ1-8
Non-derivative financial assets FTEEREE
Accounts receivable A HongKong 1,411,066 40554 479 774 - - - - LTI 14667
Prime Rate +
Dt 4.25%
FiaBEAE
MEE4 5
Bunk bobnces - clientaccouns T -FFRF 0% 19837 - - - - - - S U /R U X )
Bank balances - general accounts RGh-—REF
and ash et 00% 18141 5974 19514 - - - - -my e
Loans and advances e L 10% to % 24% - 1280 185 10580 3400 ] - N (A
Deposits and other receivables HA R hERER 1.2% - 1,052 4009 809 015 1915 53,015 - 61415 55,263
Financia ases eld for mading ~— FFERRZ 2RER - - - - - - - - 3,098 3,698 3,698
Financial asets designated BERRRAERRS
wat VDL HiLeRER - - - - - - - SBs BB B
1,797,579 48860 30,152 105,384 4015 1,995 53,015 17648 2058648 2,035,246
Other financial assets AfhoHEE
Financial assets designated KEARARERRE
watFVIPL R eRER Moo £ 15% - - -4 - 8426 - B X I ]
IS K0 I IS 45 WAl BOS 768 L0958 20713
Fair values ARE
The following table gives information about how the fair R DAL T RN R EFTE
values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a SREERNREREE T IEZER -

recurring basis are determined.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values — continued

Financial assets

THEE

AFS investments
THEERE

— Debt securities

- R

Held for trading investments
BIFEEZRE
— Listed equity securities

- LA

Investments designated as at
fair value

EERRAAEIRZRE

— Convertible notes

— MR

Fair value as at

31st March

R=ZB=T-HZ2AE

2014
=t ST
HK$’000
A7

59,170

62,904

15,851

2013

SE A

HK$'000
T

3,698

19,487

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 2
H0g

Level 1

Ui

Level 3

FE

DIRE-&

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

REETRIEGARE

Quoted prices from brokers

REHRIE

Quoted prices in an active market

TR

Discounted cash flow method
and binomial tree model
were based on spot price,
volatility and discount rate.

WBLBL 4 i R
Bk T 0 B
R W BB
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6. EWMIEH-—&

B IEFE

Correlation
between

significant
unobservable
inputs and

fair value
EEMBLER
ZHWAHESR
MEZRERE

N/A
A

N/A
A

— Spot price increases,
fair value
increases

- Discount rate
increases, fair
value decreases
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITA-&
Fair values — continued NRE-E&
Significant
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation techniques unobservable
Financial assets 31st March hierarchy and key inputs inputs
BEMEE
) TES
THEE R=ZA=t+—-R2ZARfE DAAERE MGERGRIRBABE fiE

2014 2013
—E-mE | AR
HK$°000 HK$'000

TER THTT
— Debt securities (subject to 16,534 16,613  Level 3 Recent transactions with N/A
early redemption) reference to the redemption AN

price after year end

—fEH S (AT 4R ) B i W2 5 0l 5 B4R 5 H
% 2 W I

— Unlisted investment fund 13,981 13,950  Level 2 Quoted prices by the fund N/A
administrator based on AHEH

quoted prices of underlying
listed securities

—F LT BN XA NS 3l AR
ik R U

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the A K FAEE > TR B
current year and prior years. 2 [ ABE e s 43¢ o
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial S AEES = E LN T FE 2 B E
assets
Investments
designated
Derivatives as at FVTPL Total
EBEBREK
AAERER
FTET R BRzZERE et
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TH#I0 THIo T T
As at 1st April, 2012 W FE— A A —H 1,710 23,318 25,028
Redemption e ] (1,164) - (1,164)
Purchases g E - 4,800 4,800
Fair value gains in profit or loss AR 5 2 e E A (546) 7,982 7,436
As at 31st March, 2013 AR =H=T—H - 36,100 36,100
Conversion to listed shares i Ay T Ry - (29,155) (29,155)
Purchases I H — 14,000 14,000
Fair value gains in profit or loss AR 2GS 22 48 Ao AE IR 5 - 11,440 11,440
As at 31st March, 2014 N_F-MNE=ZH=1+—H - 32,385 32,385
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair values — continued

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets — continued

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the

Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
HKSCC, brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be
settled on the same date, financial collateral including cash
and securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since
the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only

enforceable following an event of default.

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting — continued

As at 31st March, 2014

6. $RITH &
ARE-&
S B 2 A — A

R-ZB-NFE=A=+—H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities presented
amounts  set off in the in the Related amounts not
of recognised ~ consolidated  consolidated offset in the consolidated
financial ~ statementof statement of statement of financial position
assets after financial financial Financial Collateral Net
impairment position position instruments received amount
r&a e
BBRRR  BERRE TERGRHBRRR
AEACER HHCRR 2hlz TEHEZRBLE
CHEESE CREEEE CREERE SHIR  EHERY R
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS’000 HKS’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ThR ThR TR TEn TER TiEn
Accounts receivable arising from RARMEER A
the business of dealing in PR
securities and futures contracts FEUER 1,923,042 (136,371) 1,786,671 (1,343) (1,734,141) 51,187
Gross amounts Net
of recognised amounts of
financial financial
assets liabilities
setoffin the presented in the Related amounts not
Grossamounts  consolidated ~ consolidated offset in the consolidated
of recognised ~ statement of statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
i Ea
BBRRR  BERRER YERGLHBRRR
BRI HHERR 25z T RBLE
tHARATE CREELE CRARWE $RIS CHERERY |
HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’000
ThR TR ThER ThR ThR ThR
Accounts payable arising from R RBERERY
the business of dealing in EHHELL
securities and futures contracts FEfT IR 981,928 (136,371) 845,557 (1,343) (790,464) 53,750
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting — continued

As at 31st March, 2013

For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

6. $RITH-&
ARE-&

B < il B TR —
N—EBE—=%=A=+—8H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities presented
amounts set off in the in the Related amounts not
of recognised consolidated consolidated offset in the consolidated
financial statementof ~ statement of statement of financial position
assets after financial financial Financial Collateral Net
impairment position position instruments received amount
i&a [§55)
BEREE  MERRE TR GRMHRIE
HERCHD  KEZCHD 2hZ hEH R EE
SHEEAE SRARAE SRRERE SHIE  ClERY T
HKS 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
T Fibx Fikx Tt Tt Fikx
Accounts receivable arising from LGS
the business of dealing in EHPELL
securities and futures contracts JEI IR 1,544,808 (101,929) 1,442,883 (2318) (1,411,557) 29,008
Gross amounts Net
of recognised amounts of
financial financial
assets liabilities
setoffinthe  presented in the Related amounts not
Gross amouns consolidated consolidated offset in the consolidated
of recognised statementof ~ statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
i&a [$555)
MERRE  MERRE TR GRAERIE
AT AR e3iva hEHHEEE
SHARAE CHEEGE CRAKEE SHIR  CHENERY T
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000
T Tk Fikx T T Fikx
Accounts payable arising from R RBERERY
the business of dealing in FHPEEL
seccurities and futures contracts JEFFEEIA 394,670 (101,929) 292,745 (2,318) (189,410) 101,017
Note:  The cash and financial collateral received/pledged as at Mlit - i FE—WAER - FE— S =H
31st March, 2014 and 2013 represent their fair value. =+ —Hz B OIS 4 K4
SRR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-T-WE=A=+-RAL5FE

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting — continued

The tables below reconcile the “Net amounts of financial

assets/liabilities presented in the consolidated statement

tWMITE-—&

ARE-E

B L AR — A
TR LI 452 B IR B 22 251
ZERERE A FEE ] B A BB IR

of financial position”, as set out above, to the line items DR 25 IE H 2 HE -
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
2014 2013
—E—-{EF ZE— AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT T
Accounts receivable FE W BR 18
Net amount of accounts Az HEW IR 2 i A AR
receivable as stated above 1,786,671 1,442,883
Amount not in scope of SIS g A 1K B B R A 0 2 A
offsetting disclosure - 13,792
Total amount of accounts B 28T 51 2 JRE i M TH 2 44 4 %R
receivable as stated in note 28 1,786,671 1,456,675
Accounts payable FE 14 BR 1B
Net amount of accounts F3 2 AT BRIE 2 V% 4 KR
payable as stated above 845,557 292,745
Amount not in scope of S AN JB8 K B B % o IR 2 4 A
offsetting disclosure 161 6,997
Total amount of accounts B 5E33 7 271 2 JE AT R TH 2
payable as stated in note 33 M 845,718 299,742
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HEZ
For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

7. REVENUE 7. W
2014 2013
—E-HmE —E -4
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
THET T
(restated)
(K1)
Continuing operations HEREEK
Brokerage commission A8 A 42 43,675 32,533
Underwriting and placing B85 J e I 4
commission 8,397 7,354
Other commission HoAth AR 4 143 -
Interest income from: FE U AR
Loans and receivables 23K R
— clients %5 161,664 128,085
— financial institutions — 4 Rl 5,402 273
— clearing house — & - 1
Financial assets designated & 753 /NP N S E R
as at FVTPL Z 4 Rl A
— convertible notes — n g 2 1,108 887
— debt securities — s R A 2,378 2,243
Available-for-sale investments CIRE TR <y
— debt securities — &7 I 914 -
Clearing and handling fee income %% K& T8 2 It A 3,077 3,066
Advisory fee income Ji [ 2 U A 400 480
Property rental income P EH A 660 542
227,818 175,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating
divisions, namely, broking, securities margin financing,
money lending, corporate finance and investments. These
divisions are the basis on which Board of Directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
reviews the operating results and financial information. The

principal activities of these divisions are as follows:

Broking — provision of stockbroking,
futures and options broking and

underwriting and placements

Securities margin — provision of securities margin
financing financing
Money lending — provision of mortgage and

consumer loans

Corporate finance — provision of corporate advisory
services
Investments — holding of investment properties

situated in Hong Kong and

financial instruments

Upon the completion of the disposal of hotel complex
and certain assets related to the hotel and entertainment
business in Macau on 17th July, 2013, the operating results
of the hotel and entertainment business were disclosed
as discontinued operations. The segment information
reported does not include any amounts for the discontinued

operations, which are described in more details in note 17.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

*  all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
club membership, taxation recoverable and deferred

tax assets.

* all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other

than taxation payable and deferred tax liabilities.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain finance costs, certain staff costs and
certain other expenses, incurred for strategic planning

by the Group.

*  no inter-segment revenue/expense in the Group for the
years of 2014 and 2013.

Segment information about these divisions is presented

below.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable and operating segments:

BE—
For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

DERE R - &

S G908 2 6 R L 3 P 2 A
S T S ORI © B 4850 %
B 43 S TH) 2 5 L

o BREPrE g il BE KOE GE
B E SN > B A E B B A
FEREE TR o

o BRME AT B T 0 SE B I B LA
A AR T KL A T o

o BRmLA SR ] 2 SR R E T Bk 1 2
Ry B RA Wy B TAS LA
L2 ER A Ho At B S A > B A i A B

i 18 2 73 TiE 2 K88 7 T

s AR _F-WEREF
— AR NG A ) B ] 2 4 B
% o

B A AR P 2 0 58 Bk R AR e

2P R KA

PATR 7 #5707 o Je S8 i he ik 2
A AR J W AR B SEA AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. ZEER &
Segment revenue and results — continued B EREE-E
For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #E ZE—PAE = = A — HIE
Continuing operations BEREEK
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
BHRE
gL 1 BE  LXRE RE 58

HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEx TER TER TER TER TER

SEGMENT REVENUE AHKE 60,681 133,100 26,737 431 6,869 227,818
SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS)  2&aF| (&#8) 14,793 133,042 27,563 (238) 24,968 200,128
Unallocated corporate expenses A/ EL A3 i (9,766)
Profit before taxation from KHFEREERL
continuing operations BiTE 190,362
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 (restated) #r - E—=FE=H=+—HI FF
(FEHE )
Continuing operations BREEEEK
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
w5 R
o5 SHE g PEBE & it

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000 — HK$000
T T T Tk Tk T

SEGMENT REVENUE AHKE 43,243 114,573 13,460 516 3,672 175,464
SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS) ~ 2#F (&#8) 2,039 114,422 13,420 (137) (74) 129,670
Unallocated corporate expenses A/ AL A3 i (7,027)
Profit before taxation from KABETEERZ

continuing operations Tt i i 122,643
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HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. ZHEN &
Segment assets and liabilities DTHLEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and PUN 2 4% 20 T i Je 5808 o iR i 2
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: A g B R AT
As at 315t March, 2014 W ZE—pAE = = —H
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
RHRE
g E1 BE  t¥RE RE 58

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TiEx TiEx TiER T TiEn

SEGMENT ASSETS PHEE 728365 2,455,633 587,669 6,810 359,021 4,137,498
Unallocated assets FOREE 7,308
Total segment assets B 4,144,806
Assets relating to discontinued HRE#IEER2

operations (Note 1) B (i) 889,442
Consolidated total assets SRERAH 5,034,248
SEGMENT LIABILITIES THEE 130,163 733,625 116 71 4,504 868,479
Unallocated liabilities FAEEH 156,191
Total segment liabilities e s 1,024,670
Liabilities relating to AHE& IR

discontinued operations L

(Note 2) (Wit2) 128,381
Consolidated total liabilities SRARBYE 1,153,051
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued

As at 31st March, 2013

8. DEHER-—E
SREEREE— &
HoF—=4F=H=1—H

Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
B R
F SHE i PERE #E &R
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000
T T T T T T
SEGMENT ASSETS PHEE 344,115 1,510,439 94,564 6,988 152,552 2,108,658
Unallocated assets FAEERE 7,173
Total segment assets G 2,115,831
Assets relating to el ISR 5 YA
discontinued operations 2,833,403
Consolidated total assets SABEMAE 4,949,234
SEGMENT LIABILITIES AHaE 185,991 113,559 275 71 74 299,970
Unallocated liabilities FEE 141,642
Total segment liabilities BEE K 441,612
Liabilities relating to ARCRIER AR
discontinued operations 786,529
Consolidated total liabilities LhBREE 1,228,141
Note 1: The major part of the assets relating to discontinued M - ARCH I EFZ EE 2 TEN
operations represents other receivable of HK$627,886,000 1% 3627,886,0000 7T (= FE— =
(2013: nil) as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated A ) HoAh RE R TE (AR A
financial statements. RS 2 I 2R 17T B )
Note 2: The major part of the liabilities relating to discontinued Mtz - ARC#EILEFZ Az TE

310 3£124,688,0008 T (—F —=
AF 1 431,846,00095 70) 2 MEAT JE %
U R T (A 45 B 3 A 5
345 P #E) o

operations represents amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders amounting to HK$124,688,000 (2013:
HK$431,846,000) as disclosed in note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BE—
For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. PHER &
Other segment information Hibnp PER
For the year ended 31st March, 2014 AE E = = A — H I FEE
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
B35
/e RECHE HE trERE k¥ &e

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TiEn TiEn TR TR TiEn

Continuing operations BELERE
Amounts included in the i YRl

measure of segment profit R A

or loss or segment assets: LI
Additions of property and EL T PANS

equipment 186 - 8 - 722 916
Depreciation of property and EY Y VAT

equipment 3,919 - 3 2 2,945 6,869
Recognition of impairment loss on st 5 (Rt & % F

loans to securities margin clients &2 Bl - 1,657 - - - 1,657
Surplus on revaluation of BT

properties 3,573 - - - - 3,573
Fair value changes on investment B E#¥2 A ALfH

properties B - - - - 1,730 1,730
Fair value changes on financial ~ &MEEZ ARH

assets %8

- held for trading ~FEEE - - - - 8,796 8,796

- designated as at FVTPL —~HEREARE

TR R - - - - 11,471 11,471

Commission expenses A5 14,534 - - - - 14,534
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o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT-WNF=A=1+—BLLFE
Fortheyearended 31st March, 2014

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DHER-—&
Other segment information — continued BEoER &
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 (restated) Hr K== = —HIFFEE
(FEHE )
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
o
B RESHE T f TEBE #& e

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Fibn T Tk Tk Tk Tk

Continuing operations BREEXY
Amounts included in the & b M 5 1

measure of segment profit o HEERA

or loss or segment assets: ZHE:
Additions of property and WERRMZRE

equipment 1,583 - - - 17 1,600
Depreciation of property and EV O VAN

equipment 4,213 - - 3 2,672 6,888
Reversal of impairment loss on 3R B3 2 Wi

loans and advances R E R - - (34) - - (34)
Recognition of impairment loss TR FREEEF

on loans to securities margin B BHEER

clients - 755 - - - 755
Gain on disposal of property and 1413 Rk f 2 Y &2

equipment 207 - - - - 207
Surplus on revaluation of propercies ) 3 % ff /1 £ 1,386 - - - - 1,386
Fair value changes on investment B B #1324 fu 6 5 )

properties - - - - 7,100 7,100
Fair value changes on financial &M% & 2 /A fu (i 5 B

assets

- held for trading ~FHEHE - - - - (10,259) (10,259)

- designated as at FVTPL —HEREARH

TR 48 5B - - - - 6,400 6,400

Commission expenses EA B3 10,085 - - - - 10,085
All continuing segments’ operations are primarily located Pt A B AR 0 R 2 60 AL A
in Hong Kong and the majority of the Group’s revenue is RTINS Tl e S S i 3
derived from Hong Kong.
Information about major customers FBRETEEFZER
During the years ended 31st March, 2014 and 2013, there PEE E—ER - =ZF =N
were no customers contributing over 10% of the Group’s =t —HIEEE WREFF LB
total revenue. A M AR A5 10% 2 B o

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A




9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/OTHER

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

9. HittEBWA "HitKER

GAINS AND LOSSES F ]
2014 2013
—E-NF —E =
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T T
(restated)
(% H )
9a. Other operating income  9a. Hfth&E U A
Continuing operations BEREXK
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 217 31
Sundry income HAth e A 1,556 551
1,773 582
2014 2013
—e-mE | —xoo
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
TERT T T
(restated)
(% H )
9b. Other gains and losses 9b. HttlmRER
Continuing operations BEREXK
Fair value changes on REYEZ A REET)
investment properties 1,730 7,100
Gain on disposal of property SRR/ E VST P €
and equipment - 207
Net realised losses on error SERRBAT R 2 DB
trades Jhe 15 15 B (119) (2)
Fair value changes on SMEEZ N UEEE)
financial assets
— held for trading —RrEEH 8,796 (10,259)
— designated as at FVTPL —F5 0 YT el
i 18 g R 11,471 6,400
Net exchange loss BEE ¢, fi5 18 5% A (575) -
21,303 3,446

Included above are gains (losses) from listed investments of
approximately HK$8,796,000 (2013: (HK$10,259,000))
and from unlisted investments of approximately
HK$11,471,000 (2013: HK$6,400,000).

THEBORERE LR E LI T
&2 s (F58) 53 7l £18,796,000%
JC(—FE— =41 (10,259,000% JC))
K #911,471,000% 76 (& — = 4F ¢
6,400,000%5 J0) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

10. STAFF COSTS 10. ET AR
2014 2013
—E-mF —E =
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT T T
(restated)
(% H )
Continuing operations BHEKEXEK
Staff costs, including directors’ BILHEA (BIEEFREMS) -
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits S 4 N oA AR ) 13,920 14,082
Contributions to retirement 3B R A A1 T ) AR
benefits scheme 488 446
14,408 14,528
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @& & A
2014 2013
—E—-{F ZE— AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT AP
(restated)
(% HE )
Continuing operations BECEEK
Interest on bank loans and JH LA N BB R
overdrafts wholly repayable WETER B
within five years F 8 201 338
Interest on clients” accounts KERF ZH 8 59 43
260 381
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Continuing operations
Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging

(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Recognition (reversal) of
impairment loss, net
(included in other expenses)
— loans and advances
— loans to securities
margin clients
Operating lease rentals in
respect of rented premises
Rental income from investment
properties

Commission expenses

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

FECEXR
o i Vi A AL 2 F1BR
(FFA) T

A% ST A <
(R s 1R 2 TR (HE1ED) 1
(T A H At B 52)

— HERR I BGK
— B IR R R B T K

THEY) 2 KB A&
iid g7/ E itk ATON

17 < B 5¢

12. B A% F

BE_T-NE=H=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2014
—EF-lF
HKS$’ 000
TR

2,036

1,657

54

(660)
14,534

A ILFE

2013

TE AR
HK$ 000
THTT
(restated)

(REE))

2,075

67

(543)
10,085
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o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 3. EERITHREAIREEMS
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration paid or payable to each of the 9 (2013: OAT S ERT T4 (ZF— =4 1 1044)
10) directors including the Chief Executive Officer were as R (ORETEA R & AN H T
follows:
Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
] fiREE
Cham Shum Liu Sun Kwong
Hung ~ WaiHo,  KinWai, Chun Ning, Man  Ka Ziang, Chi Kit, Lung Hung

HonMan  Anthony ~ Frankie ~ Wilfred  Kong Yui Henry Victor  HonLui  Sui Kwan Total
AEX  BEE  SEE  BAE  XBH  ErR BS54 HEER AER 2%
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tibr o TEx TEx Tk T T T Tr TEx
(Note i) (Note ii)
Wzt (W)

2014 “Z-QF
Pees e - - - - 4 11 35 - - 91
Other emoluments: Hits -
Salaries and other benefits FERAMER 123 1,073 328 - - - - 450 396 2370
Discretionaty bonus LA 10,000 - - - - - - 10,000 - 20,000
Contributions to retirement BIRGER
benefit scheme Fig s 6 16 16 - - - - - 15 5
Commission % - - 177 - - - - - - 177
Total remuneration e 10,129 1,089 521 - 4 11 35 10,450 411 2,691
Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
gz THES
Cham Shum Liu Kwong
Hung ~ WaiHo,  KinWai, Chun Ning, Man  ChiKit, Lung Chiang Li Sau Hung
Hon Man Anthmy Frankie Wilfred ~ Kong Yui Vior ~ HonLui  ChunYi HungEddy  SuiKwan Total
HEX  BEE  SEE  BRE O XEE  BER  EEE OIAR  3RE AEM it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tkr Tk Thr TEx TEx Tk T T TEx TEx TEx
(Noteiii) — (Note )
(W) (W)
013 Z§-cf
Fees s - - - - ) 4 - - - - 84
Other emoluments: Hios
Salaries and other benefits Fe kAR 17 306 312 - - - 975 - - 377 2,087
Contributions to retirement BRI
benefit scheme ks 6 15 15 - - - - - - 15 51
Commission fi% - - 98 - - - - - - - 98
Tota remuneration kS 123 301 425 - £ 02 975 - - 39) 230
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is also the director of the Company MRS IR B A NFES >
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for T2 kS A P 4 B S I DA = S B i
services rendered by him as the Director. MR B Z 4 o
Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the directors MEATHARLERFRARE _F Y
waived any emoluments in the years ended 31st March, R ZE S S HIEEE
2014 and 2013. TRCFEAT AT P 5 o
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HE-Z—mM

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE B.EERTHEABREEHNE

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Notes:

(i)  The director was appointed on 28th January, 2014.

(ii)  The director resigned on 28th January, 2014.

(iii) The director resigned on 8th June, 2012.

(iv) The director resigned on 2nd April, 2012.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2013: one) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The details of the
emoluments of the three (2013: four) individuals are as

follows:

— &
Wit

() WEFR-FNE - AHE
Z1E -

(i) EHFR A —HE—H ARG
£ o

(i) FZEH N ZF— AR VH BEHE -

(iv) ZEHERF - AENA HEHE -

BEME
A A T T A7 e o 38 11 TN LA T A7
(ZF— =5 —) AL #ER > HH

EREIER E3C e g =1 (% —=
A ) E RN L 2 e RERE T

2014 2013
T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FERT Tt

(restated)

(&)

Salaries, commission and other benefits 74z ~ 1 4 K HAth 47 A 3,737 2,804

Discretionary bonus Mot fE AL 2,499 -
Contributions to retirement benefit BRI

scheme R (RET 17 41

6,253 2,845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 13.
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EERTHASREEMNS

=

— %=

B 4F 2 &7 DU i

Number of employees

EE#E
2014 2013
—F-OF —%F—=

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 JC %21,000,000% 7T - 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T % 1,500,000 %5 7C 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000  2,000,001%% T %£2,500,000 45 JC 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000  2,500,001%% 7T %23,000,0004% T 1 -
3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals (including directors
of the Company and employees) and other Directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

14. TAXATION 14. BL1H
2014 2013
—E-NmF —E =
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FER T#IT
(restated)
(REE))
Continuing operations BFREEEEK
Current tax: RPHARLIE -
Hong Kong s 26,400 19,480
Taiwan =R ] - 715
26,400 20,195
Under(over)provision in prior years DATE 4F B 3465 A5 2
(2 B 3 45
Hong Kong s 112 (30)
Taiwan =R 165 -
277 (30)
Deferred taxation (Note 36) AESERL A (K 7t36)
Current year IR A JE 68 (1,778)
26,745 18,387
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the e AR B TG 42 W AR A BE 2 A S e
estimated assessable profit for both years. Taiwan Enterprise Bidks FILL16.5% 5 o & F| 252K
Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable BB TG 3% WA AR AF B 2 Ak 5 e SR % A1
profit for both years. PL17%%1E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

14. TAXATION - continued 14. BIE - &
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit A A J3E ol TH B AR5 8 4 S H At 4 Tk
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or fi 2 1A ol I U ) 2 @ B AN

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THRT T#5 7T
(restated)
(K1)
Profit before taxation A 11 Y A 190,362 122,643
Taxation at Hong Kong Profits Tax P2 W A 15 BB % 16.5%
rate of 16.5% FH A 2 BiIH 31,410 20,236
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ANAT 0B S 2 BB R B
for tax purpose 664 523
Tax effect of income not taxable for N HE B UR A 2 BB 5
tax purpose (5,396) (1,894)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses % B wRA B T s 1R 2
not recognised B 5% 442 1,151
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised B Fl o file 52 2 Fi 15 fi5 18 (568) (134)
Under(over)provision in prior years DA 4F JE B AN 2 (B AR ) 277 (30)
Effect of different tax rate of i A ) 3 R [
a subsidiary operating in Bt JBS 2> W) B AN [A] ol %
other jurisdictions a2 (2) (14)
Others HoAt (82) (1,451)
Taxation for the year ARG FERLIH 26,745 18,387
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16.

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2014 2013
—s-mE | —x=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT Tt
Final dividend for prior financial year, 4 » I EBUFE 2
paid — HK1 cent (2013: HK1 cent) A B — B AL
per share (o — =AF 1Al 44,735 44,735
Interim dividend for current EAL > AR EUAE
financial year, paid — HK2 cents o 3 % S — g 2 vk AL
(2013: HK1 cent) per share (CF—ZA4F 1Al 89,469 44,735
Dividend recognised as distribution A AF BE e RR 2 AT IR 2 B
during the year 134,204 89,470

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March,
2014 of HKI cent per share, amounting to approximately
HK$44,735,000 (2013: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31st March, 2013 of HK1 cent per share, amounting
to approximately HK$44,735,000) has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and is subject to the approval
by the owners of the Company in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

wA (ER)

Earnings (loss)

Earnings (loss) for the purposes of basic i A &t 5 B it FE A% J¢
AR (1) 2

and diluted earnings (loss) per share

it M (5 18)

16.

AAFAEFEBZRME —F—I0FE=
A = — B 14 IR 3 R B A
TSl - L5 F544,735,0008 00 (%
— = BEER S EH =t
H kAR B 2 oK 0 5 2 A e 1 s il > 3%
w1 %9 F444,735,000% o) > I 2 ZE R HE
[E) S Koy - ok 2 NN E 7 Z W NE i1
HEAEHE -

FRER (HFR)
BESEEBROK IR

AR T AT N A 5 5 S A o 4 3
A (ks 18) 9% DU #UFREE

2014 2013
—E-mF =
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET Fis oo
487,406 (27,629)

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE - continued 16. ERRER (E5E) &

Number of shares B EE

Number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per share #HH

FHRS s BB S A S
2R O 18) 2 5 ik

2014 2013
—g-mEe| %=

000 000

TR’ Tl

4,473,476 4,473,476

For the year ended 31st March, 2014, the computation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise
price of those options is higher than the average market

price for shares.

For the year ended 31st March, 2013, the computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and/or warrants since

their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

For continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

MBE—F-NE=A=+—HIL4
BETTF - w3 4 e 4 8 M) B ST A
BEAS N ) 2 ARAT (8 1 e HE A AT (8 > i
R 75 A7 o) W RO ME - A o A v T e 3 2
T AE -

MBE_F-=F=A=1+—HIL¥F
BT 5 - w5 4 PB4 v s 18 B Sl S R
BEAR N T 22 RAT 0 JBOHE K s RR
RERS AT O - IR /% AT BRI AT 1 2 21
B SR R D o

=y PR
ENSE N TPETT RIS
2 IS A T M T T e b
i

2014 2013
—E2-mF &=
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FTRET Tt
Earnings for the purposes of basic and i w53 4 i ik A K% 4 ki
diluted earnings per share B 2 v A 163,617 104,256
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16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE - continued

For continuing operations — continued

For the years ended 31st March, 2014 and 2013, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as
the exercise price of those options is higher than the average

market price for shares.

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above

for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For discontinued operations

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for discontinued
operations is HK7.24 cents per share (2013: (HK2.95)
cents per share), based on the profit (loss) for the year
from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$323,789,000 (2013: (HK$131,885,000))
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and

diluted earnings (loss) per share.

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

16. BRER (BE) - &

RS T —
B % — P4 S E =4
Sob o R - R
i SIS (B 28 ) 2 A7 A
7 08+ 7R 247 A O 2 £
B B 2 A -

Jir Fl 2 o B B b SRR A A AR K
3 22 ) P R A A ] o

BERIEER

A B %R SERS 2 B A R ik
Bl (ks 18) B B 7. 24 (—F — =
AR (2,958 )) > TIARIEAA
WA NFEAL A B O 4 1k 267 2 AR
it A (5 48) £4323,789,0004% 76 (%
— =4 ¢ (131,885,000% 70) ) LA K |3
R B AR B i v R Ol $8) BT
WA Z Ay BRI EE o
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 17. B8R L ¥

On 4th May, 2013, the Company, being the guarantor, and
its subsidiaries, Great China Company Limited and Grand
Waldo Entertainment Limited (collectively the “Sellers”)
entered into an assets purchase agreement with certain
subsidiaries of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (the
“Purchasers”) to dispose of the hotel complex and certain
assets related to the hotel and entertainment operations of
the Group in Macau (the “Assets”) at a cash consideration
of HK$3,250 million (the “Disposal”). The completion
of the Disposal is conditional upon the satisfaction or, if
applicable, waiver of the conditions precedent set out in
the circular of the Company publicly published on 24th
May, 2013. The Disposal was approved by the Company’s
sharecholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 11th June, 2013. The Disposal was completed
as set out in the announcement of the Company publicly
published on 17th July, 2013. Upon the completion of the
Disposal, the Group ceased all the hotel and entertainment
operations and business which were presented as
discontinued operations in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

The aggregate consideration is paid by the Purchasers to the

Sellers in cash in the following manner:

(a) HK$2,600 million at closing (17th July, 2013); and

(b) HK$650 million which is interest-free, and shall be
paid on the date falling 18 months after the closing
(16th January, 2015).

The profit (loss) for the year from the discontinued
hotel and entertainment operations is set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income have been restated
to re-present the hotel and entertainment business as

discontinued operations.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

PR ANE > ARNFE (FEA
PR Ty ) B I B Ja 2 w) K v 3 A PR/ )
KEMBEAERART (RBAZEE
J7 1) BRI R g AR A IR F 2 AT
M AR (FRE A IZEE D T &
FE W B W Rk o DA B A B AR 4 8 IR
M 205 15 B 5 48 SE 15 2 09 05 4 A i
HTEE (EEE] > BaeUEA
3,250,000,000% G ([ & FIH]) -
B R IAT EAR N A RN S — A
A AU H BT K T 2
S P e ek (sl ) R
FAETER - HEFREO K ZF— =4F
ANH T — H 84T 2 A A AR RILR
B AN ) R A UE o AN A
A e O w0 = I R M /N B
IS TR B IO A TE R o i
BRI NS  AEECKIET AT
JE e g gt R B A BRERC
A 2 SR A MBI R B YIMEC &
1EEF -

%55 H 74 LR J7 KDL B 4 e % 4F
T7 AT HAE -

(@) 2,600,000,000%% JCIA WA IR (&
—ZFtA+EH) I K

(b)  650,000,000% JT & o B3 A W 28
HH/ MAER (ZFE—HE—A
F7H) ]

C A AR AR 20 M IR S 2 AR
M (s 8) WA T - 55518 S &
A A T i 2 R A 2 BT EACE
B> LAKEI I M 5 8 S5 BT 2 AR
C #1365 -



HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS — continued 17. R ILXEK &

2014 2013
—g-mE | 3=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT T#IT
Loss of hotel and entertainment 0 S 5 88 SE 05 2 4F IR i 1R
operations for the year (41,006) (213,167)
Gain on disposal of Assets RS A 2 IR A 539,143 -
498,137 (213,167)
The results of the hotel and entertainment operations for PIF B E AR S M H A A m ks 5
the year which have been included in the statement of profit T JE R R s R AR R4
or loss and other comprehensive income were as follows:
2014 2013
—e-mE | xo=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Fax it
Revenue i 4 64,415 368,103
Other operating income HoAth g A 18,662 6,271
Other gains and losses HoAt i 45 M e 48 - (157,879)
Depreciation e (23,819) (96,170)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 1+ L B 3 JE 2 44 85 (9,653) (38,610)
Commission expenses 1 < BA 52 (7,604) (113,215)
Salaries, commission and related benefits ¥4 ~ {5 A AH BH 4@ F| (39,695) (73,005)
Share-based payment expenses AR S AT 2 S - (472)
Consumables used T FE o (4,916) (25,969)
Other expenses HoAth BH 32 (30,989) (95,448)
Finance costs il R AR (1,929) (10,373)
Loss before taxation ol 11 s 4H (35,528) (236,767)
Taxation B IH (5,478) 23,600
Loss for the year AN R (41,006) (213,167)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued

17. B RIEXEK— &

2014 2013
—E-NmF &=
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FET T# T
Loss for the year from discontinued P ERSNAISE 7 P ] 7|
operations has been arrived at after ek (FHA) T A& -
charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration % B P 4 446 1,184
Depreciation e 23,819 96,170
Fair value changes on investment BEMEZ N REEE)
properties - 157,900
Gain on disposal of property and th B W 2 K 2 AR
equipment - (19)
Imputed interest income R A S A (15,906) -
Interest income from: FLE A BRI
— bank —R1T (28) (45)
— financial institutions — i Bl A A - (821)
Rental income from investment BEWEMBIA
properties (1,059) (2,910)
Less: Outgoings o S 558 1,846
Gaming promoters’ commission R A N 7,604 113,215
Casino related service expenses 5 4 355 A 188 IR 5 B =
(included in other expenses) (FF A F A B %) 17,575 65,323

During the year, Great China Company Limited and Grand RN KRR EES B A F L A L
AR B ARER CEHESRES
#H E 8k32,000,000% 70 (T — = 4E
103,000,000% JC) > &t % & 16 B £ ik
2,558,000,000% 76 (= F — = 4F : AT
16,000,000%5 76) - DA K 5t Al & 8 O
£41,011,000,000% J& (=% — = 4
151,000,000 7)) °

Waldo Entertainment Limited contributed HK$32 million
(2013: HK$103 million) to the Group’s net operating
cash flows, received HK$2,558 million (2013: paid
HK$16 million) in respect of investing activities and paid
HK$1,011 million (2013: HK$151 million) in respect of

financing activities.
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For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS — continued 17. BRI EKE &

Gain on disposal of the Assets is calculated as follows: HEZSEE I FIENT -
HK$ 000
T
Consideration satisfied by: FRAE 2 AT 7 =K
Cash B 2,600,000
Deferred consideration (Note) ESEACAE (K 7E) 611,980
3,211,980
Assets disposed of: T 2 R EEE
Prepaid lease payments TE AT A B H (593,982)
Property and equipment L EN & L]

(including the hotel complex) (BLFE T 5 42 A 1) (712,851)
Construction in progress TR (880)
Investment properties BEY) (1,322,000)
Inventories & (630)

(2,630,343)
Transaction costs 7 AR (42,494)
Gain on disposal of Assets R 2 W 539,143
Note: The amount is the present value of the deferred Mg e lN E—HE—H+N
consideration of HK$650 million to be settled on 16th H &5 7 2 1 4E 10 {8 650,000,000% 75
January, 2015, which is discounted at an effective interest ZHE s Ty E AR K41 E
rate of 4.1% per annum. As at 31st March, 2014, the Woph X —WNWE=H=+—H>
carrying amount increased to HK$627,886,000 due to the A HERRE A 2 A B > IR E
recognition of imputed interest during the period and is B B4 627,886,000 70 3 7 A FE
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables as 300~ #é&/ﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁgqﬁ( KT (B
disclosed in note 37. FE37 T I )
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. B HERE
2014 2013
—F-0mE .
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AL 2 HANHEE
comprise: IR AL
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong PR B IR AN 2 & £
— Medium-term lease — A& - 603,635
Analysed for reporting purpose as: AL T AT
Current assets B G - 38,957
Non-current assets U B - 564,678
- 603,635

The amount represented prepayment of rentals for medium-

term land use rights situated in Macau.

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group pledged the above
prepaid lease payments to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group. Details of the pledge are set out in note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.
During the year ended 31st March 2014, the prepaid lease

payments were disposed of, details of which are set out in

note 17.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

% B R A IR 22 rp 8 - b fik
FRERT AT A AL &

BoE-ZF=ZAZ+F—H AER
C ¥ b 2l T8 A A B RO AR A
S 1 432 AR AT A5 BB 2 AR AT o A B
AN 2 T HOR A7 5 BB R T k43
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AR EEL7



HE_ZT N4
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 19. MERRE
Motor Furniture
Leaschold Hotel Leaschold vehicles Office and Other
land Buildings complex  improvements andyacht  equipment fixtures tools Total
RENE
AELH B EEGSE £ AEREE BOTRE HBAREE  H#IR ait
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
T Tik T Tisn T T i T Tin
COSTORVALUATION ~ HAHfEE
At Ist April, 2012 REZ=ZFMA=R 103,780 29,102 545,73 348,706 33,485 16,772 28,408 30,742 1,138,730
Additions KE - - - 9,789 524 1,098 2,070 9 13,573
Transfer from construction EH R LH#E
in progress - - - 10,973 - - - - 10,973
Adjustment on revaluation T {5 8 - Uk - - - - - - 73
Disposils ik - - - (165) (5,586) - - (13) (5764)
At 315t March, 2013 I S
B S | 103,780 29,875 545,735 369,303 18413 17,870 30478 32,811 1,158,285
Additions RE - - - 500 37 141 38 - 916
Adjustment on revaluation BfEA% - 2,958 - = - - - - 2,958
Disposals (Note 17) W (M) - - (545,739) (358,024) - (1,076) (29,115) (32,821) (966,771)
At 315t March, 2014 BoF—WeE
ZH=1-H 103,780 30,83 - 11,779 28,660 16,935 1,401 - 195,388
Comprising: ok
At cost L3S 103,780 - - 11,779 28,660 16,935 1,401 - 162,55
At valuation B - 30,83 - - - - - - 30,833
103,780 30833 - 11,779 28,660 16935 1401 - 195,388
DEPRECIATIONAND ~ FERFE
IMPAIRMENT
Ac Ist April, 2012 REF-ZENA-H 17549 - 41,963 80,362 11,582 13,605 10,114 13,561 188,536
Provided for the year R 2450 613 29,749 55,103 3,156 989 4140 6,858 103,058
Eliminated on revaluation XGRS - (613) - - - - - - (613)
Eliminated on disposals 8 RFA = . - - (5,580) - - (13) (5,599)
At31st March, 2013 RZF-Z4
SIS | 19,799 - 71,712 135,465 9,152 14,59 14,054 20,406 285,382
Provided for the year EERE 2450 615 7367 14,096 3,004 650 1,09 1,320 30,688
Eliminated on revaluation EXGLRIT - (619) - - - - - - (615)
Eliminated on disposals it ERHES
(Note 17) (Hit17) - - (79,079) (138,192) - (906) (14,017) (21,726) (253,920)
At 315t March, 2014 e
SIS | 20,49 - - 11,369 12,246 14338 1333 - 61,53
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 315t March, 2014 e
ZA=+-1 81,531 30,83 - 410 16414 2397 68 - 133,853
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—-ZF
=H=1-8 83,981 29,875 474023 233,838 19271 3,276 16,224 12415 872,903

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




gk E U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-T-WE=A=+-RAL5FE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land

Buildings

Hotel complex

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles and yacht
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Other tools

Over the remaining lease terms
of land, ranging from 41 to 42
years

The shorter of the remaining
lease term of the land on
which the buildings are
situated of 41 years, and 49
years

The shorter of the remaining
lease terms of land on which
the buildings are situated,
ranging from 16 to 20 years,
and 25 years

The shorter of the remaining
lease terms of land on which
the buildings are situated, and
5 to 10 years

4 to 10 years

3 to 5 years

5 to 7 years

4 to 10 years

19. IREHRE-&

DA bW 36 et TELH T3 DL AR SR DU

B EFHR I
ME L M BTHS AT

415 424F

o M e L 2 R T
M414E > J 494 (DL R
565G R iE)

WIEGEAM HBFERE LT
WA F165204E - K25
A (DATR S 3 B )

HEYHE BT £ > 8 R AR

KB Hiuls £ 104F (AT A &

REL R E 4T 104E

WA B 3ESF

BEREEER SEF

HiAth T A 4F104F

The buildings of the Group were valued as at 31st March,
2014 and 2013 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited on an
open market value basis. Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited
is not connected with the Group, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong
Kong with medium-term lease. The hotel complex included
gaming premises situated in Macau with medium-term

lease.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

A G B 2 AT i R AT R R A
PR R % — PUAFE e =% — = 4R =
H =+ — B0 B (R 2 YR O AT Al
{E o KM AT 6 R R A BR 2 ] 2 B A
A B0 e BR LM A AR K
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014

19. MERZE—E

19. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

i 25 4 R PR FE A > R A

SR R 2 EE T B &R EE R E

H 2A19,412,0000 o6 (& — =4 ¢

20,003,000%670) 1E45 G MBS KR TR -

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these consolidated financial statements
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses of HK$19,412,000 (2013:
HK$20,003,000).

A [N A N B T R
T DA B I AR A MR - R A
M B2 SRAT (5 B AR o A B KA
A O AR A B R R I RE43 -

The Group had pledged certain leaschold land, buildings
and the hotel complex to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group during the year. Details of the pledge are set out

in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

20. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 20 EEIRE
2014 2013
—E-NmEF TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T-#5 7T
At beginning of the year A AEH] 880 5,851
Additions NE — 6,002
Disposal (Note 17) W (fiE17) (880) -
Transfer to property and equipment L EREY & i - (10,973)
At end of the year T A& - 880
21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21. REW
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —F—=
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FET AR

FAIR VALUE RNRE
At beginning of the year T AFEH) 1,365,600 1,562,793
Additions wE 870 16,500
Net change in fair value recognised i E A R 2 N FufE

in profit or loss 5 ) 5 A 1,730 (150,800)
Disposals (Note 17) A (Hit17) (1,322,000) (62,893)
At end of the year A& 46,200 1,365,600
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued 21 REYXE &

2014
—g-mE
HK$’ 000
FEx
Unrealised gain on investment FE AR 2 SR Y SE E AN
properties revaluation included R B B A
in profit or loss 1,730
The carrying value of investment properties shown above BT B TR
are situated on:
2014 2013
—E-nmE —F—=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR T
In Hong Kong: PE A
Long lease = I A 35,500 32,400
Medium-term lease AL 10,700 11,200
Outside Hong Kong: B2 A W 540
Medium-term lease S LItk - 1,322,000
46,200 1,365,600

Investment properties located in Hong Kong of fair value
of HK$22,700,000 (2013: HK$20,300,000) as at 31st
March, 2014 was valued by Messers. RHL Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Messers. RHL Appraisal
Limited has appropriate qualification and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
location. The valuation was arrived at by adopting the
direct comparison method based on price information of
comparable properties and adjusted to reflect the condition

and locations of the subject properties.

The valuation of other investment properties situated in
Hong Kong was performed by the directors of the Company
with reference to recent market prices for similar properties
at similar locations for both years ended 31st March, 2014
and 2013.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

PR 2 G ER T — g =
H =4 —H2Z 8 A fE £522,700,000 7T
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

In prior year, the Group acquired an investment
property located in Hong Kong from a private company,
which is beneficially owned by a minority shareholder
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The
consideration was HK$16,500,000.

The investment property situated in Macau of fair value of
HK$1,322,000,000 as at 31st March, 2013 was valued by
Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Messrs.
BMI Appraisals Limited has appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at with
reference to current passing rents of the property being held
under existing tenancies and the revisionary potential of
the tenancies and discounted by applicable market yields of

similar properties in Macau.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

and best use of properties is the current use.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment
properties is the unit sale rate taking into account time,
location and other individual factors such as size and levels
of building. A decrease in the unit sale rate would result
in decrease in fair value measurement of the investment

properties by the same percentage decrease and vice versa.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the management of the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the management of the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the end
of each reporting period, the management of the Group
work closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement. The
management of the Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs
are not available, the management of the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of

the Company.

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

21. REWME-E

W EAFEE s AR ) — A A E G
HALEH -HMEL2ERBLAA L —2&
oD BB R T g ) W — TE R
FWZWEWZE - 1UE 516,500,000
j‘B o

PR M® —F— == =+—H
208 ffE £41,322,000,000% 7T 2 & &
W) 2 T £l B 42 [ S 4 B 2 A ST B
2E A (B B AT R0 3 BE BE AN A R | o
AT AR B o w3 B ST AG A BR 2 =) B A
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21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 21. REWE-&
Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under fair B EWUAE=ZA=+—H  HEY
value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2014. There were no RSB R EEREIE - L4
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. Ao SN A R S B30 o
All of the Group’s investment properties interests held A 2 Fi A BUE Y E R A T AR
under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital A FEA - #5 DL & 82 & A
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value WEMH o ZE R EY R I LA U E
model and are classified and accounted for as investment R FHE o R A BOE W 3 S
properties. NI
The Group has pledged certain investment properties to AEBMOKE THREWERMN > E 5
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Details AREBBERBITFEFEZEMNS - F
of the pledge are set out in note 43 to the consolidated B S 2 15 RO B G B R M R
financial statements. 43 o
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. BILEE
Trading
rights in
Hong Kong Club
exchanges memberships Total
BEERZH
ZRZHE =g ast
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T# T Tt Tt
COST &N
At 1st April, 2012, RoF—-"FNMA—H -
31st March, 2013 CE-EHEEAETH R
and 31st March, 2014 ~ —F—PHFE=H =+—H 5,850 6,701 12,551
IMPAIRMENT AN
At 1st April, 2012, P E - FENHA —H -
31st March, 2013 “E-EFEEA= R
and 31st March, 2014 ~ —ZF—W4F=H=+—H 3,196 400 3,596
CARRYING VALUES BRMEE
At 31st March, 2014 A =% —PAFE=H =+ —H 2,654 6,301 8,955
At 31st March, 2013 REE A E == 2,654 6,301 8,955

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A



22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to HK$1,053,000 were no longer
utilised to generate profits to the Group. For the purpose of
impairment testing on these trading rights, the recoverable
amount has been determined based on secondary market
prices and no impairment was made as at 31st March,
2014 and 2013. The recoverable amounts of other trading
rights with carrying value of HK$1,601,000 (2013:
HK$1,601,000) held by the Group have been determined
with reference to the recoverable amounts based on a value-
in-use calculation which was similar to impairment testing
on goodwill. Particulars regarding impairment testing on

the other trading rights are disclosed in note 24.

Intangible assets amounting to HK$6,301,000 (2013:
HKS$6,301,000) represent club memberships. For the
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on
the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No
impairment loss was recognised in years 2014 and 2013
with reference to the recoverable amount of the club

memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

2.BEEE—&

AEFHZZERERLE TR
1,053,000 JC Z 3 5 HE P AN 6E I DA 5%
A A [ AR U R o 7E B ISR 38 ) HE i
A7 WAB AR B IRE > G T i ] 4 E O AR BB
TF SR R o A AR
KT —=F=H=+—HIEH
B o A< 45 H F¢ A MR T 41,601,000
JG (& — = 4F 11,601,000 00) 2 H
il 22 5 HE B AT U [ 2 FE > B2 F ]k
M %H > MRPR A AR (A RO (B R
T CEAS AR ABL) T B o HoAhse S HE 2
T8 T 155 A R S 24 v B R o

74 $86,301,000% o0 (= F — = 4F
6,301,000% J0) 2 MY & & 5 & T &
FE oMl e e iR WA >
AT [m] <5 R TG AR AR T T B 0 R e
ERATREE - 2% G g2 ik
Ml &S N F—ER R — =
A NI A R I (E T 4R o

RN FEEGE S 5 o e g e R
FL A 48 R0 ) 4F 399 -

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

23. GOODWILL 23. B8
HK$’ 000
T#IT
COST DN
At Tst April, 2012 and 31st March, 2013 A E—FMHA—H K
R -ZHFZA=1—H 94,970
Write off during the year (Note) SRR (KAL) (79,529)
At 31st March, 2014 AR —-NEZA=+—H 15,441
IMPAIRMENT ALl
At 1st April, 2012 and 31st March, 2013 AR —TAENH —H K
“EF-=ZFE=EHA=1—H 79,529
Write off during the year (Note) A NSRS (B AE) (79,529)
At 31st March, 2014 hoF-NE=A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31st March, 2014 BoE—E=ZA=1+—H 15,441
At 31st March, 2013 WoE—-=F=HA=1+—H 15,441
Note: During the year, the Group has written off the cost and the MaE AR A AE B OES A B s M s
accumulated impairment loss in relation to the hotel and S A BB A ([ A BBEAL)) 2 iA
entertainment cash-generating unit (“CGU”), the operations KB MEEE HEED e
of which was discontinued during the year, upon disposal AR RE (A MR EM 17
of the Assets as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated P §E) BAEARIF R B o
financial statements.
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are T P R A T 2 I R B 24
=

disclosed in note 24. 7 o
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24. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 22 and 23, respectively, have been
allocated to the broking CGU (see note 8 for details of
segment information). The carrying amounts of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) and certain trading
rights as at 31st March, 2014 and 2013 allocated to the

units are as follows:

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

24 BEREMRZE 2R ERR

A3 RO B 5E22 223 2 A 4 B E il
RAEME S EREED oI E KL
Ay B 2 B B (B4 B S R 2
1 > 2 B RES) o 4 i & % AE B
Z TR (AR B EHEER) &AE T2
GRER R —TE R —F—=4F=H
=P —HMWREMAENT -

(a) Goodwill (a) BEE
Broking
HK$’ 000
T T
Carrying value as at 1st April, 2012, N FE—TAFMH—H -
31st March, 2013 and 31st March, 2014 e e e = it el E 4
CE—PEZH Z+—H 2R 15,441
(b) Trading rights b) XZHE
Carrying value as at 1st April, 2012, T E-TENA—H
31st March, 2013 and 31st March, 2014 CE-ZFEZA=E T H K
CE-PFEZHA =t HZREE 1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 4% (2013: 4%) and at zero (2013: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to

fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

£, 5 A TR RE R AR B
A7 2 T i (8] 4 A AR BB AE (B (E EH
TR AE o w4 wh A TR AR PR B S 4 A
2 HAF B BTE R Lhd% (—F — =4
4%) 2B R RE (EF — =
F) 2 REREITHER B - HE
ZHRRBEMEEELZ FER
R BB RTIMMP I 2 RB LE
P T R 2 W o
J&ARAE > AT ] B % 2 AT fa] & 32 ] B 2
AR S S LA B 2 ARl
Wi [m) 4 8 Bk 48 A2 B BB 2 A RTER
i {E
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25.

26.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets represent statutory and other deposits with

various exchanges and clearing houses and are non-interest

25.

HthEE
HA P 7 1R 2T R I 52 55 T e 5
Bt 2 B Ho a9 e o AT B 4 3

bearing. =L E o
LOANS AND ADVANCES 26. ER KRB
2014 2013
—g-mE | CEo=k
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT AP
Fixed-rate loan receivables FE ) R B K 467,349 93,678
Variable-rate loan receivables T B ) 3R M U £ R 153,000 —
620,349 93,678
Less: Allowances for impaired debts P A T A (18) (18)
620,331 93,660
Secured H g 255,162 41,915
Unsecured 4 1K 365,169 51,745
620,331 93,660
Analysed as: GyMT S
Current L 357,132 91,260
Non-current JE B 263,199 2,400
620,331 93,660

At 31st March, 2014, loans and advances with carrying
amount of HK$255,162,000 (2013: HK$3,162,000) are
secured by first mortgage of properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate fair value of HK$374,300,000 (2013:
HK$9,000,000); carrying amount of HK$20,800,000
(2013: HK$38,200,000) are covered by second mortgages
of properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value
of HK$116,600,000 (2013: HK$116,400,000). At 31st
March, 2013, loans and advances with carrying amount
of HK$38,753,000 are secured by shares listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with an aggregate fair value
of HK$144,362,000. The fixed-rate loan receivables carry
interest ranging from 9% to 24% (2013: 10% to 24%) per
annum. The variable-rate loan receivables carry interest at
P + 2% to P + 3% per annum, ranging from 7.25% to 8%
per annum.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

WoE—-WE=A=+—H, EM@[
i £5255,162,0004% 7T :f~ji
3,162,000%5 70) 2 B 3 K ¥ il A
FAH £5374,300,000%7C (—F—=
9,000,000 JC) Z HEY #2506 — i’“
¥ /E By 35 #4950 T (E 420,800,000
JC (& — =4 : 38,200,000 JC) 2
K R A J /Afc{ﬁﬁ'mséooooo
W (U F— =4F 1 116,400,0004% 7T)
Zéiﬁ%%éﬁZ?ﬁ:?ﬁ%f’H‘%ﬁ%ﬁoﬁ&
CE-ZHEZA=ZTH IREEA
38,753,000 7T 2 Bk I B i 4 e (E
F5144,362,000% 7T 2 7 i B 22 BT BT
J A0 A B FE A o [ 72 A 2R i B 3K A%
PO 48 (. F— = 4F  10E &
24@) ZAERREEE o 1 A AR i
N B 5 T R RN 2 JE A A EE R R
SFZE%'JK (I F & 4F7.25 % £ 8JH)
+



26. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

The Group determines the allowances for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts and management’s judgment, including
assessment of change of credit quality, collateral and
the collection history of each customer. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 84% (2013: 91%) of the total
loans and advances was due from the Group’s five largest
borrowing customers. The directors of the Company believe

that the allowances for impaired debts are sufficient.

Movements in the allowances for impaired debts are as

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

26 ERRBR-&

A% B2 (B AR 5 S i ) kOE 2 B KOIR I
Z G > DA R HLE 2 K (AR E
BE RS Gl PR REEF
ZCEREC B T PR A AR A
F A 2 T AR M B P R84% (L F
— =AF 1 91%) 2 MR URCAS AR 1 KA K
&2 ARIE > A G T G B PR
B 2 A6 L o A ) A A (S
A5 2 o

ICRIER R g Ll P R

follows:
2014 2013
—e-mE | ook
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FRET T#IT
Balance at beginning of the year &5 R 18 7,137
Reversal for the year A A $3 [ - (34)
Write-off €| - (7,085)
Balance at end of the year HERAE R 18 18

Included in the Group’s loans and advances are an
individually impaired customer with an aggregate balance of
HK$180,000 (2013: HK$180,000). The borrower is facing
financial difficulties in meeting commitments and full
repayment of principal and interest is in doubt. After taking
into account collateral held for the loan, an impairment
of HK$18,000 (2013: HK$18,000) was made. No further
impairment allowance was considered necessary based on

the Group’s evaluation of collectability.

There are no loans and advances past due but not impaired
as at 31st March, 2014 and 2013.

The loans and advances with a carrying amount of
HK$620,169,000 (2013: HK$93,498,000) are neither
past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period.
In view of the repayment history of these borrowers and
collateral provided, the directors of the Company consider

the amount to be recoverable and of good credit quality.

A ] 2 B B B R R (A
Z KT A8 A5 R £5180,000%5 UG (- F
— =4 1 180,000 7T) © w%fE KN B
TE B AT A 5 5 T 48 B B I > BE S
T WU R AR & KOF BAF BE o 85T Jwh
B 2 A & > ©1EH 18,000
HE T (T E— = 4F 1 18,0004 IT) 2 T
1B o AR A 42 [ S i ] 3 TE B B
1l > 5855 PR TR M — 25 W E B -

o E-NE R FE - =F=H
= S R AR M R B B
SIf 3 (o

A R BA SR > BR T E £5620,169,00045
JC (= F— =4 1 93,498,00045 70) 2 &
K B Ty W A 38 3 IR (o B
R RN 2 KRR Bk DL K TR
AR > AN B HE R A B A B
A RA ] B B RS SE R o

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

27.

DEPOSIT

Amount represented deposit paid to Galaxy Casino S.A.
(“Galaxy”) pursuant to the service contract entered between
Grand Waldo Entertainment Limited (“GWE”) and Galaxy
in respect of the provision of gaming related marketing
and business promotion services in a casino in the Group’s
hotel complex. The balance was unsecured, bearing interest
at 1.2% per annum as at 31st March, 2013. During the
year, the deposit was refunded upon the cancellation of the
service agreement between Galaxy and GWE following the

Disposal disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial

27. B&

A B AR EACRIR R S ARG A R w
([ 4 AT o S8 1) B 9% T 463 48 355 B0 A R
A w] (TSR 1) &1 57 2 MR %5 4 9T 2 1]
SR SAY 2 4 o WZ B B A2 B R
TE A B2 05 0 #6525 ME A 2 IR 4 5 4 {1
1 724 Bl i 3% 4 B B SE s 4 R R 5
RAFE-ZHFEA=E1—H AR
% 2 SIS AR B 4% 128 2 AR R FHE o
AR o TR SR T B < A A 4 2 RS W
O & IH (AR S B R M st 17

statements. Z YRR BEUH » stk TR M -
28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 28. B AR 1A
2014 2013
—E-mF —%F—=
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
THT T#E T
Accounts receivable arising from the HHREEEFPEALZ
business of dealing in securities: JEMUIR I
— Cash clients —BaEF 17,439 22,195
— Margin clients: —REEEF
— Directors and their associates —EERWEZHBEANL 1,413 593
— Other margin clients —HA R BEF 1,761,229 1,426,090
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing —FiEPRAEEARAA
Company Limited 20,064 2
Accounts receivable from futures MEEBESHNEFPESE
clearing house arising from KEMEHEZ
the business of dealing in JFRE i R I
futures contracts 4,141 9,968
Accounts receivable arising from hotel —  J K I 44 %5 4 & A=
and entertainment operations Z e IR IH - 13,792
1,804,286 1,472,640
Less: Impairment allowance I k(A (17,615) (15,965)
1,786,671 1,456,675

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days after
trade date while accounts receivable from futures clearing

house is one day after trade date.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of HK$3,302,000
(2013: HK$710,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period but which the directors of the Company
consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which

are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting

BE—
For the year ended 3lst March, 2014

28. BN BRIE — &

BEEF 2 BUCRE T - A4 ik s
WK @ 1 T AR T 2% 3,302,000 70
(% — =48 1 710,000% 70) 2 FE 3K
TH > MEA ) ) R R8O A B Bk e I
WA - H A B E S B R
K 58 B T A 40 R T 2 R AR E

i -

0 SR 00 E S 0 9 2 B
&P REWCIRIE N = > AR B AR E AT (i

period, the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as LEE HWIRE) WE
follows:
2014 2013
—g-mE | %=

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH5 Tt
0 — 30 days 08 30K 3,233 624
31 - 60 days 31 260K 69 86
3,302 710

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of HK$14,137,000 (2013: HK$21,485,000) are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting
period and the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that the amounts are recoverable.

AR BIR > BRI E 514,137,000 7
(T — =4 21,485,000% J0) 2 M
B 4 5 2 W TE 2 S 6 4 S ik
18 > A ) 58 A A BH 3K E £ T LA
W lE] o
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28.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$6,301,292,000
(2013: HK$3,820,025,000). Significant portion of the
pledged securities are listed equity securities in Hong
Kong. The loans are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date and carry interest at Hong Kong Prime
Rate +2% to 4.45% per annum (2013: Hong Kong Prime
Rate +2% to 4.25% per annum). Securities are assigned
with specific margin ratios for calculating their margin
values. Additional funds or collateral are required if the
outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value of
securities deposited. The collateral held can be repledged
and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any
outstanding amount owed by margin clients. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as 54% (2013: 51%) of
the total loans to securities margin clients was due from
the Group’s ten largest securities margin clients. No ageing
analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin

financing.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are
margin loans with an aggregate outstanding balance of
HK$40,467,000 (2013: HK$32,437,000) which are not
fully secured. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk on these loans, with exposure spread over
a number of clients, and which are closely monitored
by the Group. The Group held collateral of listed
equity securities with a fair value of HK$11,710,000
(2013: HK$17,055,000) at the end of the reporting
period in respect of these loans. Impairment allowance
of HK$17,615,000 (2013: HK$15,965,000) has been
made for margin loans with an aggregate outstanding
balance of HK$25,832,000 (2013: HK$26,567,000). No
further impairment allowance is considered necessary for
remaining margin loans based on the Group’s evaluation of

collectability.

In determining the allowances for impaired loans to
securities margin clients, management of the Group
considers the margin shortfall by comparing the market
value of stock portfolio and the outstanding balance of loan
to securities margin clients individually. Impairments are
made for those clients with margin shortfall as at year end

and with no settlement after the year end.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

28. EUWNBRIE — &

BTHEFERESEREF ZERYUKF
IR A E R AR
8 46,301,292,0004% 75 (& — =4 ¢
3,820,025,000% 70) ° F W L T A RE
I Ak B HE AR5 5 0 AR A o A B
B A5 A H AR A k0
i 47 ) 2R 77 s i 1 B R S5 2 %5 4,45
JE (R — =4 E%UK%‘%KF‘*E%U
RN2JE £4.258) 51 E o 3% 5w T
2 f’“ﬁ\tmiunﬂé;ﬁ% 54 E
- HRERIEBRCHFAZES
A ERRESEE IgERERF
RPN G & IR 0 o TR A 2 K
P 0] DLFEHE AR o 1 AR 42 [ n] @ 05 %
2B DL R & K T EAT 2 AT ]
RAEBERE - AR B HEREEES
A2 B RAS54% (T — =4

51%) R EWCAEE T KEHRESE
F 22 B IE > AR 4 [ EE R P R
ZHEN - W HER B EET 2
YRR > AN T R A MR o A I
FHAMER > IR e 28 4 5% IR 4% 0 A o

7 A [ 2 A MR I D S AR OR R R A
ik £540,467,000% 70 (& — =4 :
32,437,000 00) Z PR & S 3K > A B
,L%kjtﬂﬁz’% [ G $%l§ljﬁﬂﬁl
AEZERERMEEHEZEEEF
JEBE - A BRI IR 2 &K F
AEBAEBIIELR - hlAEIR > &
T R AR IS A A
FLAE11,710,0004 J0 (& — =4 ¢
17,055,000% 50) 2 i e AR5 > iF
B Ak A 1H 1R &5 Bk £525,832,000%5 7T
#?i~4¢ 26 567,000%5 70) 2 PR
A H117,615,00088 0 (& — =
@ : 15,965,000%71: 2 AE A o R
5 74 A [ S A T R TE B 2 A WR
T U JH B H AR R 7 4 B K o — 2
TR AE B

ZIK%@ ﬁAﬁﬂinﬂ#ﬁnﬂj‘zgﬁ
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BEFZIREHGTHEHEEF AL 2R
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Movements in the allowances for impaired debts in respect

of loans to securities margin clients are as follows:

HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

28. BN BRIE — &

i TR RS eR T 2 B2 WEMA
B s B r

2014 2013

—e-mE | %=

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

Fax Tl

Balance at beginning of the year R 15,965 15,937
Charge for the year CRE( 1,657 755
Write-off s ) (727)
Balance at end of the year AEACES R 17,615 15,965

In addition to the individually assessed allowances for
impaired debts, the Group has also assessed, on a collective
basis, a loan impairment allowance for accounts receivable
arising from the business of dealing in securities with
margin clients that are individually insignificant or accounts
receivable where no impairment has been identified
individually. Objective evidence of collective impairment
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, internal credit rating and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables. No significant amount of collective
impairment allowance is considered necessary based on the

Group’s evaluation.

B 7 5 3t S Al 368 (L 55 2 BB A 41
AL B I B RS E T HE W
5 2 FET5 A A AR ) Sl G
Wi iR T BRI A e T A i B
BB (EL Y B SR TE > L o R VEE i R i
R T AR AT 990 WAl o % B DR 2 %
ok TIRGEATRNE P E €S R
5 BERE A - DA B B e sk JE 2 2 A IR
9 B 5% B b Ty A8 7 DL 2 m) BB A A
B o R ASE W 2 Al > 385 P AR
H KRR ) R (AR o
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28. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued 28.

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due

from certain related parties. The details are as follows:

Balance
at
Lst April,
2013
S
“E-Z§
A—H
Name <] 2
HKS$’ 000
T
Mr. Lung Hon Lui HEE R
(Director of the Company) (RAFEF) 593
Mr. Hung Hon Man B SR (RN A )
(Director of the ZHE AL
Company)’s associate N
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan B S o0 5 4 (A8 ) o )
(Director of the ZHB AL

Company)’s associate .

JE U B 1R —

B ES TP Y = aal
B IR b L T B LR
W

Market

Maximum value

Balance amount of pledged

at outstanding securities at

31st March, during 31st March,
2014 the year 2014

i EHzES
ZE-NEF R-Z2-0%F

ZA=1+-8 ER&S ZHA=+-H
ZiEH KEELH ZmiE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T Tt

260 601 11,953
569 569 83,245
584 594 710

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

As at 31st March, 2013, included in the Group’s accounts
receivable arising from hotel and entertainment operations
were trade and other receivables. The Group normally
allowed credit periods of up to 60 days to customers relating
to hotel and entertainment operations, except for certain
creditworthy customers with long term relationship and
stable repayment pattern, where the terms were extended to

a longer period.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

A 5 20 G B2 SR G 4 LA
IR 0 7 B R 022 S A 250
GES R

MREF—=F=A=+—H KEH
BB R R SR 2 R
15 B T T At B SR I o AR SR T — ik
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28.

29.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable
arising from hotel and entertainment operations presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period,

which approximated the respective revenue recognition

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

28. BN BRIE — &

T G B 5 8 7 A 2 R WOIR TEAR 95
o R 2 8% 5% Y (BEUAR BR] Wi 45 e
H AR ) 250 HRE 7T 4T

dates.

2014 2013
—E-0NF —E =

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T#E 7T
0 — 30 days 0E 30K - 10,624
31 — 60 days 31E60KR - 2,394
61 - 90 days 61F 90K - 141
Over 90 days 90K - 633
- 13,792

Before accepting any new customer, the directors of the
Company access the potential customers’ credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to

customers are subject to a yearly or more frequent review.

As at 31st March, 2013, the accounts receivable from hotel
and entertainment operations with a carrying amount of
HK$13,018,000 were neither past due nor impaired and
with a carrying amount of HK$774,000 were past due over
30 days but not impaired at the end of the reporting period.
The directors of the Company were of the opinion that the
amounts were recoverable based on historical experience and

on-going monitoring of the customers’ credit quality.

INVENTORIES

Finished goods Ly

T BEAR AT AT % 5 AT > AR R AT
fEERF 2 ERERATHE TR 2
R R « % 5 P 2 BREH IR Z 4F
J3E B S AR o

MRoF—-=ZF=ZA=+—H HE Kk
5 4 o 2 M U R TR P R T (E
13,018,000 7T 2 1 i i TE 7% 7 43 1)
OB U (B > 17 AR T £ 774,0000 JC 2
JRE Wi B I A 7 930 HAH A i 5 R
A - AN A EER S R
B R EFERER TR A
B K T o] A ] o

29. FE

2014 2013
—g-mE | F =

HK$’ 000 HKS$’000

FB T

- 1,736

During the year, all the inventories were disposed of
as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

AR - TAfFR¥E HE (nEEs
VB W R M R 17 BT R )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

30. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 30. ®FRE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —F =
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT THIT
Held for trading: FrfEE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong A 7 s I 1 2 JIRA 76 75 62,904 3,698
Designated as at FVTPL: 82 B s R E 1 e RS
Convertible notes (Note a) ] S (e ita) 15,851 19,487
Unlisted investment fund (Note b) LR EES (W itb) 13,981 13,950
Unlisted debt securities (Note c) I ETATEF RS (M atc) 16,534 16,613
46,366 50,050
Available-for-sale investments: At R E
Debt securities (Note 4) fEHs w8 I (M itd)
— listed in Hong Kong — R T 27,264 -
— listed overseas — A BT 31,906 -
59,170 -
168,440 53,748
Analysed as AT E
Current it 79,438 31,978
Non-current I H) 89,002 21,770
168,440 53,748

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A
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30. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

— continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Group held convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$14,000,000 as at 31st March, 2014 (2013:
HK$14,801,000) which were issued by Hong Kong listed
companies and bear fixed interest of 4% to 8% (2013: 3%
to 8%) per annum and will be due in 2015 to 2016 (2013:
due in 2014) (subject to early redemption). The fair value of
the convertible notes amounted to HK$15,851,000 as at 31st
March, 2014 (2013: HK$19,487,000).

The Group is entitled to convert the whole or any part(s) of
the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant issuers
at a price with reference to the terms and conditions of the

convertible notes.

The fair values of the convertible notes as at year ended
31st March, 2014 and 2013 were estimated by Messrs. RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional

valuers not connected with the Group.

The principal investment objective of the fund is to achieve
capital appreciation through medium/long term equities
investment in selected Asian region/countries. The fair value
of the investment fund is established by reference to the net
asset value per share quoted by respective fund administrator,
which is determined after taking into account the assets held
by the fund, which reflects the Group’s share of the net asset
value of the fund. The shares held in the fund are redeemed
at net asset value per share. The major assets of the fund as
at 31st March, 2014 and 2013 are securities listed in Hong
Kong and bank balance.

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

30 BERE-&E

Wit -

@

(b)

N S S S i e S /A & W]
WoE—VWAEZAS—HZAS
1 F514,000,0000 70 (- F — =4
14,801,000%5 J) 2 o] 4 % 5295 - 47 B
A 4 B SR PR A R R4AJE B (&
— SAE 3 g ) G A AN &
—HAERE R NFRE (=
A S F—PUAEEN ) (R T 4R A
) o G AF A] 6 SRR & — P AR
Z“HA=1+—HZ2ARME 15,851,000
WIT (& —=4F 0 19,487,000%570) ©

A S [ AT 4 2 25 W] AR SR AR 22 R I
WA T T L B (BRSP4 B SR R
2 S AT AR I 4 A < R 40 2 A R %
TN R -

RELE S S
S S H 22 ALY SR S
Bl 2 0 8 7 AR
7 L 7 24t o

WA 2 TR A R R R R E
Y 18I AT R R AR B T
EREANME RERLEZ A RER
2% MBS ITBCE ARt 25
JBe A (UL TG R R % S B R A
) I E > b S WA AR R A
ZAEE T BETFE - SRS A Z
FBe A 2 45 A O (SR [0 o 2R Y
SR -MER E - EZFE] =4
H 2 E B By s i 25 JaRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

30. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
— continued

Notes: — continued

(c) The Group held a secured note with principal amount of
US$2,000,000 which was issued by an unlisted company,
bears fixed interest of 15% per annum. The secured note was
issued on 21st October, 2011 and due in 2013, which was
extended to October 2015 by the issuer on 18th October,
2013 (subject to early redemption). Management classified
this secured note as designated as at FVTPL since this

investment contains embedded derivative.

The fair value of the note as at year ended 31st March, 2014
was estimated with reference to the redemption price after
year end, which was the principal and the accrued interest up
to 16th April, 2014, the redemption date.

The fair value of the note as at year ended 31st March,
2013 was estimated by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers not connected with

the Group.

(d) The Group held listed debt securities with principal amount
of HK$35,152,000 as at 31st March, 2014 (2013: nil) which
bear fixed interest of 8.25% to 12.875% per annum and
will be due in 2016 to 2019. The Group also held a listed
perpetual debt with principal amount of HK$23,270,000
(2013: nil) as at 31st March, 2014 bear interest of 6.875%
per annum. The fair value of these debt securities amounted
to HK$59,170,000 (2013: nil).

The fair value of the debt securities as at year ended 31st
March, 2014 was estimated with reference to the price

quoted by independent brokers.

31. BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions during the course of conducting
its regulated activities in its ordinary course of business.
Such clients’ monies are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts. The Group has recognised the
corresponding accounts payable to respective clients and

other institutions.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

30 EERE-E

Mrat - —

(0 ALEEFFAH —MWFE LHARBET
T AR 42 %8 /542,000,000 5% 76 31 % 4 Al &
15JEFHE 2 A HEH 45 o 3% JE A KA
BN —F-—FTH T —HE#
il it =T — ARSI H AR b g AT
NI ZF— =4+ A /VH iR
BER AT A B (0T B
1) o ph A I IE BOE B i A AT A
T 5 B I TE AT HE AT SR 4
Ty A8 8 By ¥5 08 S AE A 48 %5 AT o

FEHRR_EF-E=A =T —HZA
P )T 2 7% A &5 H R 2 B IRE (4
G M H AWM H R PR A
T8 B Z BEFHFLE) WG

HWERR —F - =F=A=1 A
27 AL i S S S 2
SR (LA AR) £ 3 (P41 R
AR -

(d) AEEFLHR-E—NE=H=+—
H Z 7 & %8 /435,152,000 70 (%
— =AW 2 B AR SR o A B
%5 12 [ 7€ 4F | £8.25)F %£12.875)F 5t
Bl R ZF— N E ZE U F
W o ARG — R F AR
=H =1 —HZ A& 523,270,000
WIT (R — =40 ) 2 B K
W HARAER F6.875 et B o b4
W78 5 2 N B £559,170,000%5 06 (—
T— ZAF ) o

B F —IE = =+
2O SRR B A 2 W
=,

31. RITERHR—FFKRF
AR S T LRSS I AT 2 B
e 0 B WS TRIE 45 % T B A
B2 40 6 o LS R P IR T A I —
{50 % 43 S RATIRF « A % 101
MG A T 5 T A S 2
I -



32.

33.

BANK BALANCES -
GENERAL ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging from 0%
to 1.2% (2013: 0% to 0.7%) per annum with an original

maturity of three months or less.

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

3R2.RTEH-—RERFRAS

ARFEEEAEREA 2B &
KA i 35 R F (R 3 A F-0)8 21,28
(ZF—=F o F0.7H)) 5HE > JR7
FNHAH & =8 A 5k LN 2 5 R AT A7

2/
wA °

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 33. Bt ARIA
2014 2013
—e-mE | ook
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FTERT T#IT
Accounts payable arising from the g S R A
business of dealing in securities: Z FEATHRIA -
— Cash clients —BReEEF 98,547 110,514
— Margin clients —REEEF 733,913 113,841
— Clearing houses — &5 F - 50,278
— Brokers — & 3,808 -
Accounts payable to clients arising MBEEHEEERDEL
from the business of Z AT & P HIRIE
dealing in futures contracts 9,289 18,112
Accounts payable arising from hotel TG I T h 487 7 7 A
and entertainment operations Z EATHRIH 161 6,997
845,718 299,742

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients, securities clearing houses and brokers are two days
after trade date. The normal settlement terms of accounts
payable to clients arising from the business of dealing in
futures contracts are one day after trade date. The ageing of

these balances is within 30 days.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand and carry interest at 0.25% (2013: 0.25%) per
annum. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

Included in accounts payable to margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts
due to directors of the Company and their associates of
HK$1,139,000 (2013: HK$3,070,000).

B ERF - BRI AL
MREMIEW &R B L HAEMH -
MEAMHEBXRBTEEZEMNER
MREMIEF&EHEM AL HE—H -
%S A R 2 RIS 30K LAY o

R R R A T R TE ZE R R R AE
0 Ho 320258 (& —=4F 1 0.25)8)
ZAEREGE - |IRAEHRESME
B 3 B AME A o DRI 0 B R R S
I3 M e

WHEEBEERELEZEMNREBLEF
HRIE o i 456 MEASF A W) 3 3 0 4
2N 1 FE 1,139,000 00 (%
— = 4F 1 3,070,00045 70) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

33. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - continued 33. E{tRRIE — &

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received
from clients for their trading of futures contracts on the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “HKFE”). The
excesses of the outstanding amounts over the required initial
margin deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to
clients on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of

business of futures contract dealing.

As at 31st March, 2014 and 2013, the average credit period
granted by the suppliers or service providers of hotel and
entertainment operations is 60 days. The following is an
ageing analysis of accounts payable arising from hotel and
entertainment operations, presented based on the invoice

date at the end of the reporting period.

MEaHHEXRETELEZBNER
HRIE > J2 4 1 % 5 SO LU AE 7 s 0 B
Lo A RAR (T ) B E A
BRI Z R R o B P L E
Jir 5 2 00 2 PR 4 4 i 2 1 R AR 2R K
o HREF BRI R - BN E
FRHERG M AN EER
T R % o A Sl e A > R I
e FR IR e o1 AT o

M_ZF-NEE_F - =F=H4
= H o G KRR R B
Al 5 3t HE 7 42 3t 2 P 3 15 4 0 B0
Koo YR B R 4 2 A IR
AR i R 2 8 52 ) 52 5 1Y R i
MR

2014 2013

—e-mE | —xoo
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FiER T#IT
0 — 30 days 0% 30K 161 3,270
31 - 60 days 31EGOR - 3,261
61 - 90 days 61F 90K - 12
Over 90 days 90K - 454
161 6,997

34. AMOUNTS DUE TO 34, RIEERBRRFIE

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand. s

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A



HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

35. BANK BORROWINGS 35. RITHE
2014 2013
—e-mE| - o=

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT T TT
Secured and variable-rate borrowings A HEAT B AT B ] A - 332,467
Within one year —4ER - 169,627

More than one year, but not A8 — AR H AN I W AR
exceeding two years - 162,840
- 332,467

Less: Amount due within one year W IIMER B B2 —F N

shown under current liabilities 2 i 2 A - 169,627

Amounts shown under non-current FIAE I i B B 2 KR
liabilities - 162,840

The effective interest rate (which is also equal to contracted
interest rate) of the Group’s borrowings as at 31st March,
2013 was HIBOR + 2%.

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group obtained
banking facilities totalling HK$765,483,000 (2013:
HK$1,865,350,000). These banking facilities were secured
by charges over client’s pledged securities and certain of
the Group’s properties and by corporate guarantees issued
by the Company. Details of the Group’s pledged assets
are disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$765,483,000 (2013:
HK$1,532,883,000).

AEMZEER - F — =4 =
= B ZE BRI A AR S5 A AT 49 A1
) Ty A U AT [ PR S 2

RO FE—NE=ZHA=+—H > REH
18 A 45765,483,000 06 (—F — =
4 1 1,865,350,000% J0) Z R 1715 &
o MHFRITEEFEEURTF 2K
PRI AR E AL Ty EZ MR 2
B AN A B 2 N RS ORAE B S AR -
AEBOCIEM 2 EEFE ORGS0
iRk R M sE43 4% #F -

W oE-NE=ZA=Z+—H A4
B et 5 R AT 5 R AR PR R R BUK
HH 15765,483,000 0 (T — ZAF ¢
1,532,883,000%5 J0) °

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT-WNF=A=1+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

36. DEFERRED TAX 36. IEELEHIH
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) DIFARAEE N FHEFEC R
recognised and movements thereon during the current and EREBITH AT (B &) DL R H 5 @J

prior years:

Collective

(Decelerated) impairment

accelerated  Revaluation  Revaluation on loans

tax of of AFS and
depreciation  properties  investments advances Total

(&) EfTH ERREX

NERERE EENE LERE 2REAE hi
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$000
Tk Tk Tk Tk T

At It April, 2012 REE—-"FNH—H (150) 162,757 - () 162,602
Charge (credit) to profit or il nJF)\ AFEERG
loss for the year
— Continuing operations ~ RS A
(Note 14) (Hiit14) 25 (2,003) - - (1,778)
- Discontinued operations ~B#IEE - (23,600) - - (23,600)
225 (25,603) - - (25,378)
Charge to other comprehensive MR A FCA 2 i
income for the year - 229 - - 229
At 315t March, 2013 “E-=F=]=1—H 75 137,383 - (5) 137,453

Charge (credit) to profit or loss :ﬂ][‘% (P A) AEERE

for the year

- Continuing operations — R R
(Note 14) (H#t14) (712) 780 - - 68
- Discontinued operations —BRIEK - (132,802) - - (132,802)
(712) (132,022) - - (132,734)

Charge (credit) to other B GEA) RS

comprehensive income Hib A2 w4

for the year - 590 (203) - 387
At 31st March, 2014 MR- EZ =0 (637) 5,951 (203) (5) 5,106

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A




36.

37.

DEFERRED TAX - continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated unutilised tax losses of HK$186,557,000 (2013:
HK$809,889,000) available to offset against future profits.
The tax losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty
of future profit streams. During the year, unutilised tax
losses of HK$83,882,000 (2013: HK$104,767,000)
expired. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$110,712,000 (2013: HK$753,106,000) that will expire
in the next three years. Other losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax liabilities

(assets) for financial reporting purposes:

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

36. IEERE — &

AR R > A4 1B H 186,557,000
I (& — =4 809,889,000 JT)
Z Al wH R B A B IE 4R v A DL 8
A G F o H R R BE T E I AR 1 B
F B YR - DRI N 4EE e R B TE RS 1R -
AE A > 83,882,0000 0 (L F — = AF
104,767,000% 70) 2 A8 B EEIHT
K JE I o A B HR B IE e 18 R AL 4 A R
H A = A Jim T 2 5 1H110,712,000% JC
(= F— =4 1 753,106,000% 0)  H
b i 5 T B A 4 o

WAERIEEE CEE) st Em S
AT

2014 2013
—g-mE | %ok
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT T#TT
Deferred tax assets I AE i VE B (734) (558)
Deferred tax liabilities R SIE 1 TH A A 5,840 138,011
5,106 137,453
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 37.F AN FE -BERHEMEW
RECEIVABLES HIg
2014 2013
—E-mF —EF-Z=4F
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Prepayments A FH 1,098 1,297
Other deposits HoAth % 4 4,535 5,185
Other receivables Al JRE A R TR 5,800 3,171
Receivables from disposal of 8 5% S 2 B WU IR
the Assets (Note 17) (Mtat17) 627,886 -
639,319 9,653
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. JB 7%
Number
of shares
o E
’000 HK$’ 000
T T 0
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each - 40 A B T (0. 1095 T
Authorised: E
At 1st April, 2012, 31st March, AR -THENA—H
2013 and 2014 R -EER RN
“HA=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT A
At 1st April, 2012, 31st March, T E—TFEMA—H
2013 and 2014 SR SRR R
“A=+—H 4,473,476 447,348
39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 39, B R RESH B
(a) The share option scheme of the Company adopted (@) AAFN EEZ HFHATINH

on 16th May, 2002 has expired on 5th June, 2012.
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme
(“Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on
24th August, 2012. The major terms of the Option

Scheme are summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and
attract persons whose contribution are or may be
beneficial to the growth and development of the

Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

Rz RS RO % — =
HERNH R H JE o AN A CARE
BT E - NH U H A
Z PR G PR A — TR I R RE S
([ RERE ST 81 ]) - B RESH 8 2
FEBRM RN T

() W RCHE R B & 1 o &
2 0 85T R TEA N F R
JB 53 2 B A LA 2 A 2 W] JBOR
A AR M 45 > 3l #E DL B T
51 R AL R
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(a) — continued

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

The eligible participants of the Option Scheme
include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or
any entity in which the Group holding an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (c) any such other persons (including but not
limited to supplier, customer, consultant, adviser,
contractor, business partner or service provider
of the Group or any Invested Entity) who in the
absolute discretion of the Board of Directors has

contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of
the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the

Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each
participant in any twelve-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the

Company for the time being.

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

39. R R & - &

(@ —#

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

WA HERT 8 2 H B2 L
LA © ()= 55 B A 4 I 5+
AH A G 2 BT ([
BEEM ) AT HATHE
o B A i 4 T s R )
(b) A S M S 2 B E i
AT FE AT 3 (LG oL Ik
PTESR) s ROEFFLHE
A I HERE B B B
AR AR B AR R 2 AT AT
TNt (LR AN RO 7 4 1
B 57 SO B IR
HE R HEEM -
LT~ SEHE KT e B 1A e
)

PR AT ol A 4% I 1 ) e A
S5 8] 2 AT 0] L Al S8 I T )
FT % K i R AT 2 T A
JECHE T T BEZH T 84T 2 el
HH ERAFABEAARA
A NI AT A AT AT A
B 78 25 0 230% ©

PR AT (0 AR 42 S B it o) S AR
2 1) 22 A A L A S P )
Jir % 4 22 P A B T AT RE
JH T 84T Z B A wE A
AR A E B AT IR 2
10% °

T AT AT 1248 B ) R AT AR
5% 8 JHE i ) R A R A AT
H At i e HEE ) i 2 1 2
JBHE > T 1) 4% 2 B B AT
K vl gEH ) & 2 BLE B AT 2
B A7 A8 (] IR A0 45 2 A7 (i 2
W RAT e ) A1
B A 2y W] R AT IR
Z1%
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 39. R R & - &
(a) - continued (a) —#f

(vi) There is no minimum period required for (vi) J R it o) SN o L o E AT
the holding of a share option before it can be I B A W I RE 2 e i
exercised. (R

(vii) A share option may be exercised at any time (vii) M B A m] A 5 5 w2
during a period to be determined by the directors, ] IR o IR A7 0 > 5% 19 ) 2 Bl
the period may commence on a day after the R THRERRA R
date upon which the offer for the grant of share BHEF > B ERER
options is made but shall not be later than ten W 104F A i 3y -

years from the date of grant of the share option.

(viii) The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, (viii) 2 B 2 40 2 40 1 e fE > HIj 28
must be made within 5 business days from the i T I R R
date of the offer of grant of the share option. S B 2 BN AN R I

HE
(ix) The exercise price of a share option must be the (ix) BEREHE 2 ATiMEZH A F 3 =
higher of: HEh 2z
a. the closing price of the share of the a. Rl TERERREA
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s WITE W 22 BT 2 B H
daily quotations on the date of the offer of RIR 2 A8 wm I i
the grang; g

b.  the average closing price of the share of the b, BRI T I R
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s e H AT L8 22 5 B AE
daily quotations for the five trading days Wk 22 fir 2 19 B AE & o
immediately preceding the date of the offer N AR m A T 25 0
of the grant; and mifE s &

c. the nominal value of the share of the c AR FE A HAE
Company.

(x) The Option Scheme will expire on 23rd August, (x) W RTRE ST B % 0 =& AR
2022. ANH A= H I

There was no share option granted to eligible W E - FE PR N - FE— AR

participants during the years ended 31st March, 2014 =H =+ — B IEAE N A '

and 2013. T 2 B P4 I TRCHE o

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A




39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) On 10th August, 2010, the Company had granted

115,800,000 share options to certain employees and
services providers relating to its then jointly controlled
entities, Great China and GWE. The purpose of
granting the options is to provide incentive and reward
to those employees and services providers making
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interest of and develop the businesses of Great China
and GWE.

The terms of share options granted to employees are as

follows:

a. 24,300,000 options are exercisable within the
next 12 months from 9th February, 2011 which is
the end of the vesting period for the first batch of

options;

b. 24,300,000 options are exercisable within the
next 12 months from 9th February, 2012; which
is the end of the vesting period for the second
batch of options;

c. 25,300,000 options are exercisable within the
next 12 months from 9th February, 2013; which
is the end of the vesting period for the third batch

of options;

d.  The right of the options would automatically
expire (i) when the employee ceases employment
with Great China and GWE or (ii) three years
after 9th February, 2011, whichever is the earlier.

Remaining 41,900,000 share options were granted to

services providers in year ended 31st March, 2011.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date of grant of share options was HK$0.50

per share.

(b)

HE-_Z-WHF=A=
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

39. R R & - &

HoE-FENATH S AL
T B R 2 3 (] 8 o B K
e 7 4 R IR S B 25 TR B
i 5 43k 1 7 4% 4 115,800,00017 B
JRHE o $2 M T IR RE 2 B A B &
3% Jh 3 A A o K e T T D I 4
EW M LB R B ER A
PE 3 o 48 A 0E B 2 % 5 R
B IR B At I P

1] f B 3%t 2 i RO HE 2 e e

a. 24,300,000/ 1§ B HE AT i =%
——4E T HIJUH (G HEHE R RE
2 BB WA A ) AR
A AR A AT

b. 24,300,000 i B HE ] it —F
— AR HJUB G R
2 B g A 45 R H ) R TR
R A A A AT

c. 25,300,000 B R ] it &
—ZAE T HJUH R = U
HE 2 i Jog BA 45 R H 4 B EHRY
KA A A8 A NATHE

d. A BEIRRE R A LTI L (R
WL gE A R ME) B B T
() 18 B R 152 18 7 K 2
Ko 4 I R 48 5 Bl A
FHAIJLUHRF R =% -
HE241,900,00017 i B HE T i B2
TE - —E=ZH =+ —HILEE
BT R LR -

SR W RE B AT 2 AR A
JI% 453 Wi T 18 & B 0,509 IC ©

Annual Report 2014 £ 3R




o & B TS R SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 39. B RERTEI— &

(b)

— continued

The directors of the Company considered that the
fair value of the services received cannot be estimated
reliably. The Group measured the value of the services
and the corresponding increase in equity by reference

to the fair value of the options granted.

The estimated fair value of the 115,800,000 options
granted was HK$11,773,000. The Group amortised
the expenses over the vesting periods and recognised
amounts of nil (2013: HK$472,000) as staff costs
during the year. No expense was recognised after year

2011 for share option granted to services providers.

The following table discloses movement of the
Company’s share options held by employees and

services providers during the year:

(b)

—

AN TR R R M A SE R
FT WS B 2 MRS 1 s el - A 42 H
27 T 4% W P RE 2 8 SR (B T T
A B RS 2 EAE DL S RE 25 09 A
JRE 38 o

T #5242 115,800,000/ i 1% 4 2
fli 5 FUAH £511,773,0009 90 © A
45 8 B o U v B S I R
REFEERBGE S E(CFE— =
1 472,0008570) £ B LA - it
TR AR AR R B )
iR 5 4L 1 73 4% s B RO 2 B S o

R PEER R B s R A
Z AR ) B FBORE T AR A 1 )

Number of share option
RREHE

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

asat  Granted  Forfeited asat  Granted  Forfeited asat

st April, during during 315t March, during during 315t March,

2012 theyear  theyear 2013 theyear  theyear 2014

R i i

-§-CF “§-ZF ~§-BF

MA-A ZA=t-H ZA=1-8

Option grant date BRERHAS HATE FARE  FARK HAGE EARE  FARK  HAGE
Employees and services providers 1€ & J IR H5 (L& 7

10th August, 2010 “E-FEANTA 111,800,000 - (45,900,000) 65,900,000 - (65,900,000) -
Exercisable at the end PES R T AT

of the year

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, share
options held by employees and services providers
were forfeited amounting to HK$6,703,000 (2013:
HK$4,123,000).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

REE T —FE=H =+ —
HIE4F B > B E B iR B it e
T 4F TR R I R RE A B
6,703,000% 7T (& — = 4F :
4,123,0004570) °



40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

41.

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting HK$488,000 (2013:
HK$448,000), are charged to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau were
members of government-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the Macau government. The Group
was required to contribute a monthly fixed contribution to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes was to make the required contributions
under the schemes. The contributions made during the year
amounted to HK$134,000 (2013: HK$669,000).

LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises

which fall due as follows:

—4ER

Within one year

HE-_Z—NE=F
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

40. 3R k48 X 5+ 8

41.

A4 ] AR 5 0 M B 4 R A6k
ZHLR B 5 W TR A B E B
il 5 R ARAR AT E (TR e wt a3 ) o
50 R A T B 2 G R N R
SRR o A5 [ OAR 8 S AKE it
FEE S A ERIEESAARBEA
B 250k 3K o 7 $1488,000%5 7T (= F
— AT 1 448,000%00) Z K E MRS
8 £35S At 4 T i g5 R AN BR -

% 2 [T B R > D R B 2 TR P
I 625 S ) SR 5 FHLAE AR AR R 5T 0 A9 A
B o AN SE W JE He fg F O e 4 R iR
PR 5T 3 48 3K DA R IR AR AR A - A
42 [ i AT BE AR R4 R T ME— AT
PERiEi Tl PsThrek (SR G BN
22 B3R F5134,0009 0 (& — =
4 1 669,000% 7T) ©

GRS S

A EEREMA

T S o A S A T 2
AR &g RITER S YR
H2ZEWAMT :

2014 2013

—g-mE | %=
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
F T
72 51

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of one year and rentals are

ﬁXCd fOI‘ an average Of one year.

445 05 LA o R 2 A 9 L L2 T
NE YR 2 R4 o T T —
4 2 BN o A R P4
RS -
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

41. LEASE COMMITMENTS - continued 41. MWAE &
The Group as lessor rEBEAHEBAA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had AR CE BIOR DA 2 A 5 B AR S B
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum R 2 A AN R AR (R A RUE

lease payments:

2014 2013
—e-mE | %=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
Within one year — N 744 404
In the second to fifth year inclusive BAERS AN
(BLEE & W AF) 124 -
868 404
Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and FLA DASE- ¥ =4 2 R B o a2 > 1 FiL 4
rentals are fixed for an average of three years. IR HEFF = A5 o
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BXEYE
2014 2013
—E-NmF &=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
Capital expenditure in respect of W — YR
the renovation of a property e N - 379

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A




43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

HE-Z—mM

B IEFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

43. EEEHA

DA BRI 2 W O AR > R AR
A V8 452 AT A5 FERH 2 KA

2014 2013
—E-nmE R
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
TR T T

Hong Kong ik
Leasehold land 0+ Hh 81,229 83,981
Building T 31,637 28,733
Investment properties BEY 10,700 11,200
123,566 123,914

Macau (L
Prepaid lease payments TAAHAH B 3H - 603,635
Hotel complex 0 15 % M - 474,023
Investment properties ﬁ§%¥ - 1,322,000
- 2,399,658
123,566 2,523,572

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also
secured by charges over clients’ pledged securities of
HK$612,786,000 (2013: HK$460,545,000) as at 31st
March, 2014 and corporate guarantees issued by the

Company.

o R FE—NE=ZH=+—H >
AEBZEITEEHEITIEEFEF Z2OIK
75 72612,786,000 JC (& — = 4F ¢
460,545,000%5 70) PL AN w1 EE R 2

A3 PR AE AR A o
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HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

44 BEALRS
U Gy B S 28 LA 0 T B R 2 %2
5 R G AN > A SE R AE AT DL
B A+ 5

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following related party transactions during

the year:

2014
—g-mg
HK$’ 000
Fi#n

2013

N
HK$’ 000
Tt

Nature of transaction

REME

Name of related party
BMEALHE £8

Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Commission income (Note i) 107 218
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie,
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony,
Hung Sui Kwan,
Cheng Wai Ho, Lung Hon Lui,
Ho Kwok Kwan, Ng Hon Sau, Larry
and their associates

LB SR - AR e
SR~ Wb ek
W Se A - HEE R e
B #5564 - RER A
DY EE T F YN

WA (H7ti)

Messrs. Lung Hon Lui, Interest income (Note ii) 118 89
Ho Kwok Kwan, Hung Hon Man,
Hung Sui Kwan and their associates

HEE 7 S A - (T B #9584 -
PSSR~ P IS AR DL

(ISP PN~

MR WA (HfFtii)

Messrs. Hung Hon Man’s associate

B 2 BB A+
Substantial shareholder

Honeylink Agents Limited

Rental income (Note iii)

e WA (B i#iii)

FERR

Commission income (Note i)

WA (B iti)

420 -

Notes:

(i) Commission was charged at rates ranging from 0.1%
to 0.15% (2013: 0.1% to 0.15%) on the total value of

transactions.

(i)

Interest was charged at fixed rates ranging from 7.2360% to

9.2520% (2013: 7.2360% to 9.2520%) on the outstanding

balance of margin loans.

(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged at HK$42,000 (2013: nil).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

Wi

(i)

(i)

(iif)

A 4 38 45 22 B HEAH 2.0.19% 20.15% (-
E— T 0.1%%F0.15%) Y -

BB ¥ $7.2360%%9.2520% (&
— = 4E 1 7.2360%%9.2520% ) Z [E E
T R i A B 2 AR B G BR I

5 A R 2 M 4 F542,0000 00 (T F
— TAE ) o



44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
— continued
The related party transactions as disclosed above were
exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements as
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

44 BEALIRE &

b SCPEER 2 BN A58 o MR i T
TR B 14ATETE N A R FR A B A 52
Gy Z R~ A A B ST R TE 2 KR

JE °

EEEREZFHM

T N H A A B 2 B R AR TR 2
LU

2014 2013

—g-mE | —xo=
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER Tt
Short-term employee benefits 2 10 4 B AR 26,236 5,327
Post-employment benefits ol i 1% AR A 139 129
Share-based payment DA 27 BE Bl 2 # - 115
26,375 5,571

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management is determined by the performance of

individuals and market trends.

A H A PR 28 IO 1%
NRBL R T 5 B 8 E -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

45, "2 B 2 B B AR R &

2014 2013
—e-mE | —xoo
NOTE HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Rt FET TH#I0
Non-current assets I i B A
Unlisted investments in g AR Z
subsidiaries (Note) FEEWHHE (M) 471,012 459,253
Amounts due from subsidiaries Rt Jig 2 7 R R 748,239 441,173
1,219,251 900,426
Current assets T A
Tax recoverable EIRQEERE 266 -
Deposits and prepayments i 4 e FEA ROE 436 95
Amounts due from subsidiaries Rt Jag 2N ¥ R R 1,908,335 2,215,833
Bank and cash RATAE B M & 520 189
1,909,557 2,216,117
Current Liabilities i) B
Accrued expenses JE 5t B 3 842 832
Tax payable JRE S0 TH - 99
Amounts due to subsidiaries R JE N F A 170,242 158,143
171,084 159,074
Net current assets i B R 1,738,473 2,057,043
Net assets & E 2,957,724 2,957,469
Capital and reserves AR I fi
Share capital JBe A 38 447,348 447,348
Reserves Tt 2,510,376 2,510,121
Total capital and reserves AR T At A S RE 2,957,724 2,957,469
Note: Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries are capital o AR AN P O S T 4 - T

contribution amounting to HK$30,173,000 (2013:
HK$18,414,000). The capital contribution represents
the imputed interest on interest free amounts due from

subsidiaries which are not expected to be recovered within

12 months from the end of the reporting period.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

30,173,000% 7T ( & — = 4 :
18,414,000% 70) 2 H & o &L E
B 2 2 B T 2 A R (FE IO &t
WA AT 28 A Rl ED) 2
BAE -



45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

45. KPR 2R K -8

Movement in reserves RESD
Share
Share Share Special option  Retained
capitall  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
Bx ROEER HARE BRERE REEN ag
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$ 000
T#x  TEx  T#x  TEx  FTEx  TEx

Balance at Ist April, 2012 REF-ZHNA—-AZEHR 47348 2280969 194,549 29,612 59,951 3,012,429
Profit for the year AAEFE i R - - - - 34,038 34,038
Release upon expiry of shares RER 2B HER

options and warrants granted 0 I T e o - - - (23,381) 23,381 -
Dividend Paid CRHBE - - - - (89470)  (89,470)
Recognition of share based HERR LA MRS ft 2 3

payment expenses - - - 472 - 472
Balance at 31st March, 2013 BoE—-=%=H=1—H

a1 447,348 2,280,969 194,549 6,703 27,900 2,957,469

Profit for the year AR - - - - 134,459 134,459
Release upon expiry of shares T i

options - - - (6,703) 6,703 -
Dividend Paid B RS - - - - (134209 (134209)
Balance at 31st March, 2014 REZF—-NE=A=+—H

b 447,348 2,280,969 194,549 - 34,858 2,957,724
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. MY 2 RIF1E
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi ARERELRAR
WEAFAR EMRILE  REEH BERORARRE Bl IERR
2014 2013
= “ECR

Direct  Indirect  Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest  interest
BREL MEEE ANEG MRER
% % % %
BAK BAM EAN AEAK

Get Nice Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Islands
EEEARE  LEk 10,000% ¢ BERRK
Get Nice Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$360,000,000 - 100 - 100 Securities dealing and
(“GNS") Non-voting HK$40,000,000 broking and securities
deferred shares margin financing
(Note 1)
SEERARAA B 5l 360,000,000 ¢ EE -y Y EEES Y
(Tt ) R 40,000,000 ¢ HHRERRE
(Wit1)
Get Nice Futures Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 100 - 100 Futures and options
Limited broking
GIBEARAF Eif ik 20,000,004 M RIER R ET
Get Nice Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 - 100 Corporate finance
services
SHREARA Fik Tk 10,000,000 1C PERERT
Get Nice Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
GERERARLAR Fik ik 2,000,000 ¢ BERER
Quality Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,000 - 100 - 100 Property holding
AR Fik Lk 9,001 1T VES T
Get Nice Finance Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 - 100 - 100 Money lending
Limited
ST ARAH Bk ik W e
Allex International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Holding of motor
vehicles
BERRARAA Eif Tl 10,0006 0 G2

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A




46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

— continued
Issued and
Place of Class of fully paid
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital
fi
i PR MR ROEH BRORARRA
Prime Pacific Investments British Virgin Ordinary US$1
Limited Islands
EREARE  LER 1%
Steppington Holdings Limited  British Virgin Ordinary US§10,000
Islands
ARELRE  HER 10,000%7¢
Pacific Challenge Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000
Limited
KFREZERERAT B Bk 60,000,000 72
Pacific Challenge Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong Limited
AFEREMEARAT Bk HEn 10,000,000 ¢
Pacific Challenge Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
Services Limited
Bk ik 2T
Grace Field Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2
EEARLA Fik Rk 1T
Pacific Challenge Secretarial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Services Limited
KFERERERE &k Lk 10,000 7T
HRAA
Gainventure Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Ordinary Uss1
Islands
EREABE  TER 1ET

HE_Z-—NF=A=T-"BILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2014

46. B QBB - &

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities
ARERELRAR
A%l IRRE
2014 2013
“mg E-ap
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest  interest
EREE BRER AREG MRER
% % % %
At BAW AEAH ARM
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
RN
100 - 100 - Tnvestment holding
BRER
- 100 - 100 Inactive
MR AT
- 100 - 100 Inactive
HEATR
- 100 - 100 Property holding
kS )
- 100 - 100 Property holding
ES T
- 100 - 100 Property holding
VEST
100 - 100 - Tnvestment holding
BRER
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. M 2 B — &
— continued
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi ARERALRAR
WEATEHR GREAEE S UL BRTRARRE A%l £33
2014 2013
T et

Direct  Indirect  Direct  Indirect
interest  interest interest  interest
ERES BEEE ANEG MEER
% % % Y%
BAk EAW AAR AR

Clever Switch Limited British Virgin Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
ERELRE LR E30 BEER
Get Nice Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
R RRARAA ik Fil 1,000,000 72 AR
Joyful Villa Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
EREARE  LER IET BERR
Venturecorp [nvestment British Virgin Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands
ERELRE LR £ BEER
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
REARA Fi L 1T kST
NobleNet Limited British Virgin Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
ERELRE LR £ BEER
Superior Capital Assets British Virgin Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
Limited Islands
fRRLRE  TER £ BEER
Get Nice International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000 - 80 - 100 Inactive
BrREARAR Fi HER 1,000 7 HERER
¢Capitalist.com (Asia) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$19,500,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
EOER G ARAR A HER 19,500,000 2 AERER

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A




46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Name of subsidiary

i PR

Dragon Rainbow Limited

More Profit International
Limited

Great Right Holdings Limited

EERRARAT

Rise Fortune Group Limited

SREEA R

Get Nice Investment Limited

GHREARAR

Group Success International
Limited

Get Nice Entertainment
Limited

GHREARLA

Better Dynamic Limited

Treasure Advantage Limited

Place of

incorporation

AR

British Virgin
Islands
EBELHE

British Virgin
Islands
ERRLRE

British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE

British Virgin
Islands
EBELHE

Hong Kong
&k

British Virgin
Islands
EBELHE

British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE

British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE

British Virgin
Islands
EBELHE

Class of
shares held
fik
RAER

Ordinary
Eak
Ordinary
il
Ordinary
Hl
Ordinary
ik

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
Hl
Ordinary
L
Ordinary
L
Ordinary

Rk

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

BRORARRA

US$10,000
10,000 78
Us$1
EI
US850,000
50,0003 1T

HKS$1
1T

BE_ZTWF=E A ILFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

46. B A BFHE &

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities
ARBREZHEER
BAt TEEE
2014 2013
“eomE 3
Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
interest  interest  interest  interest
ERES MEREE AHER HEER
% % % %
Bol BAR EAK ARK
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
RErm
- 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
REnm
- 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
RELER
- 100 - 100 Property holding
WERA
- 100 - 100 Inactive
BENER
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
REsm
- 100 - 100 Inactive
N
- 100 - - Tnvestment holding
RErm
- 100 - - Inactive
BERER
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

46. B LARFHE—&E

— continued
Issued and
Place of Class of fully paid

Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital

fik

il RS ARmueE  ROER ERTRARKRA

Great China Company Limited ~ Macau Quota capital MOP100,000

Kh#EFRLH Hr [k 3 e 100,000 78

Grand Waldo Hotel Limited Macau Quota capital MOP1,000,000

SHEERRAA r REEE 1,000,000 18

Carnival Club Limited Macau Quota capital MOP1,000,000

REEGHRAA B REEE 1,000,000 18

Grand Waldo Outlets Macau Quota capital MOP100,000

Company Limited
EMEERHRL i RHEA 100,000 %1
Grand Waldo Entertainment Macau Quota capital MOP1,000,000
Limited
SHEEARAR #r REEA 1,000,000 P
GW Conference and Exhibition ~ Macau Quota capital MOP100,000
Centre Company Limited

EHEERLERAR ar REEEK 100,000 7B

Note:

(1) The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two
directors of the Company, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such ordinary shares respectively.
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Proportion of

ownership interest

held by the Group Principal activities
R HER
Bot TEEE
2014 2013
T et
Direct  Indirect  Direct  Indirect
interest  interest  interest interest
ERER HEER AUED MR
% % % Y%
Bol BAR EAK ARK
- 05 - 65 Inactive
BENER
- 65 - 65 Inactive
BERERE
- 05 - 05 Inactive
BERER
- 58.5 - 58.5 Inactive
BENER
- 05 - 05 [nactive
BEREE
- 05 - 65 Inactive
BERER
Wt it
(1) HAEXNFRMAEFA Z EHRERER

FE AR A L I L SR i U S, > o e
AT B A4 T R AT ] e RO 8 28 4
SR G B L AR o NG MR &
i 38 5 ] I IR T A R N R A
P TR A R N 2 S A D
A B 3 1E1,000,000,000,000 7
JCZ KA T R AT N > # T A LA
TEIEAT B 1 2 © 80U B RS 5 B
JE T E T 405 45 ST R G T A N 0 T
B R S 2 L R A A
AN > S 43 B e Bl 45 A BE 3 A i
R BRI  BUE Bk 2 EEARI AR o



FINANCIAL

Year ended 31st March,
BE=A=t+-HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
“EF-FE “F-—F “F-"F —ZF-ZF | ZB-0F
HK$’000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
SR SR T SR THET
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2 and 3) (Note 2)
(Mt (H7t1) (Hfit1)  (HfiF2R3) (HtiF2)
(restated)
(&)
RESULTS
Continuing operations
Turnover 271,723 716,623 752,107 175,464 227,818
Profit (loss) before taxation B i A (5 48) 261,446 278,393 (227,262) 122,643 190,362
Taxation (36,922) (30,517) 19 (18,387) (26,745)
Profit (loss) for the year KEFFEEEER
from continuing operations AEEE (BH) 224,524 247,876 (227,243) 104,256 163,617
Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year from KEEHKIEEK L
discontinued operations AR (B 4R) - - - (213,167) 498,137
Profit (loss) for the year AR FE A (B54R) 224,524 247,876 (227,243) (108,911) 661,754
As at 31st March,
R=ZA=+—-H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
“E -y R ZF-TF ZF-ZF | ZB-NE
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T Tk Tt Tk THER
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htit1) (Htit1) (Htit1) (Htit1) (He2)
(restated)
(K3
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets 3,735,516 6,015,966 5,283,096 4,949,234 5,034,248
Total liabilities (334,013) (1,780,723) (1,359,451) (1,228,141) | (1,153,051)
Total equity MRS 3,401,503 4,235,243 3,923,645 3,721,093 3,881,197
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Notes:

1)

@

(€)

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

financial position as set out in the Company’s annual report.

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31st March, 2014 have been extracted from the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of financial position which are set out on
pages 44, 45, 46, 47 and 125 respectively.

The Group completed its disposal of hotel complex and certain
assets on 17th July, 2013. Accordingly, the operating results of
the hotel and entertainment business for the year were disclosed
as discontinued operation. The comparative figures in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income have been restated to re-present the hotel and
entertainment business as discontinued operations which are set

out on page 125.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERBR A A

)

)

AW ER A E AR AAL
AR T 2 R R A T A A T i £ R
Befg & M AR DL -

AREEBE - F—WEZH = +—HILF
B 2 SR O E T B TS 4y Rl BB AR AR
A4 ~ 45~ 46~ 4725 E T Z AR
gt B At 2 T R 3R T A BAES IR DL -

ALEHEA = F —=FE A BB
B G AR BoE TR o R W5 K&
BRYE S 2 AF N RO R E T & 1k
HeBs o Frn tH o MOH A A T AR R A 2 H
T CRCE S o DURHI G B 4 e
BB A A LR SEH CFF B R O 2 125
H) e
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